
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

May 15, 2019–8:30 a.m.
Escambia County Central Office Complex

3363 West Park Place, Room 104
             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Swearing in of Staff and acceptance of staff as expert witness  
 

3. Acceptance of the BOA Meeting Package with the Development Services
Staff Findings-of-Fact, into evidence.

 

 

4. Proof of Publication and waive the reading of the legal advertisement.  
 

5. Approval of Resume Minutes.  
 

A.   Approval of Resume Meeting Minutes from the April 17, 2019 Board of
Adjustment Meeting.

 

6. Consideration of the following cases:  
 

A.   Case No.:V-2019-03 
Address: 150 Loblolly Ln
Request Request an additional 15' to the maximum sign height of 20' 
Requested by: Raj Patel, Owner

 

B.   Case No.: CU-2019-04 
Address: 4300 BLK Molino Road
Request: Conditional Use request to allow for a telecommunication tower

greater than 150 feet in height in the Rural Residential (RR)
zoning district

Requested
by:

Staci Matz with Integrisite, Agent for Tony Lathan, Owner

 

C.   Case No.: CU-2019-07 
Address: 8925 Gulf Beach Hwy



Request: Conditional use to allow for a salvage yard.
Requested by: Catalina Filip, Owner

 

D.   Case No.: CU-2019-08 
Address:  398 W. Bogia Road
Request: The request for the conditional use permit is to develop a

solar power generation facility.
Requested
by:

Allara Mills Gutcher, Agent for Gulf Power

 

E.   Case No.: CU-2019-09 
Address: 3980 Hwy 97
Request: Conditional Use request to install a new telecommunication

tower at the proposed height of 315' and associated ground
equipment in the Agricultural (AGR) zoning district.

Requested
by:

Staci Matz, Agent for Eli & Sarah Miller c/o New Cingular
Wireless PCS, LLC

 

7. Discussion Items.  
 

8. Old/New Business.  
 

9. Announcement.

The next Board of Adjustment Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, June
19, 2019 at 8:30 a.m., at the Escambia County Central Office Complex,
Room 104, 3363 West Park Place.

 

 

10. Adjournment.  
 



   
Board of Adjustment   5. A.           
Meeting Date: 05/15/2019  

Attachments
Draft April 17, 2019 Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes



D R A F T
RESUMÉ OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

HELD April 17, 2019

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:30 A.M. – 8:59 A.M.)

Present: Auby Smith   
  Bill Stromquist   
  Jennifer Rigby   
  Michael Godwin   
  Willie Kirkland, Jr.   
  Walker Wilson   
Absent: Judy Gund
Staff Present: Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning

Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
Juan Lemos, Senior Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Administrative Assistant
Kim Wilson, Urban Planner I
Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney

 

REGULAR BOA AGENDA
 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Swearing in of Staff and acceptance of staff as expert witness
 

3.  Acceptance of the BOA Meeting Package with the Development Services Staff
Findings-of-Fact, into evidence.

 
  Motion by Vice Chairman Walker Wilson, Seconded by Board Member

Michael Godwin 

Motion was made to accept the April 17, 2019 BOA meeting packet. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

4.  Proof of Publication and waive the reading of the legal advertisement.
 
  Motion by Vice Chairman Walker Wilson, Seconded by Board Member



  Motion by Vice Chairman Walker Wilson, Seconded by Board Member
Michael Godwin 

The Clerk provided proof of publication and motion was made to accept. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

5.  Approval of Resume Minutes.
 

A.     Approval of Resume Meeting Minutes from the March 20, 2019 Board of
Adjustment Meeting.

  

 
  Motion by Vice Chairman Walker Wilson, Seconded by Board Member Willie

Kirkland, Jr. 

Motion was made to approve the March 20, 2019 BOA Resume Meeting
Minutes. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

6.  Consideration of the following cases:
 

A.     Case No.: CU-2019-05 
Address: 8210 Lillian Highway and 8200 BLK Lillian Highway
Request: Conditional use for proposed retail building in excess of

6,000 sq. feet. Proposed retail building will be
approximately 9,100 sq. ft. when complete

Requested
by:

Cole Bracey, Teramore Development, LLC, Agent for
Joseph and Cindy Sclease, Owners

No BOA member acknowledged any ex parte communication regarding this item. 

No BOA member acknowledged visiting the site. 

No BOA member refrained from voting on this matter due to any conflict of
interest. 

  

 
  Motion by Vice Chairman Walker Wilson, Seconded by Board Member Auby

Smith 

Motion was made to adopt Staff's Findings Fact and approve of the
Conditional Use. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

B.     Case No.: CU-2019-06 
Address: 2800 Wilde Lake Blvd
Request: Conditional use which would allow an existing building to be

utilized as a childcare/ pre-k program as an extension of
services provided by Pine Forest United Methodist Church

  



Requested
by:

Marcia Nowlin, Agent for John McBride, Owner

No BOA member acknowledged any ex parte communication regarding this item. 

No BOA member acknowledged visiting the site. 

No BOA member refrained from voting on this matter due to any conflict of
interest.

 
  Motion by Vice Chairman Walker Wilson, Seconded by Board Member Willie

Kirkland, Jr. 

Motion was made to adopt Staff's Findings of Fact and approve the
Conditional Use. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

7.  Discussion Items.
 

8.  Old/New Business.
 

9.  Announcement.

The next Board of Adjustment Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, May 15,
2019 at 8:30 a.m., at the Escambia County Central Office Complex, Room 104,
3363 West Park Place.

 

10.  Adjournment.
 



   
Board of Adjustment   6. A.           
Meeting Date: 05/15/2019  
CASE: V-2019-03
APPLICANT: Raj Patel, Owner 

ADDRESS: 150 Loblolly Lane 

PROPERTY REFERENCE NO.: 13-1S-31-1100-004-014  
ZONING DISTRICT: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial and light

industrial district  

FUTURE LAND USE: Com, Commercial

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED VARIANCE:

Request an additional 15' to the maximum sign height of 20' 

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

Land Development Code of Escambia County, Florida (Ordinance No. 96-3 as amended),
Section:5-8.8(d)(2)
Sec. 5-8.8
2. Area and height. A maximum 1.00 square foot of freestanding sign area is allowed per
lineal foot of parcel street frontage, and a minimum total of 50 square feet is allowed for
any development parcel regardless of street frontage.  If the on-premises freestanding
signage for an entire parcel is limited to one sign structure, the total sign area from all
parcel street frontage is available to that structure, subject to area limits applicable to its
location.  Regardless of street frontage or number of sign structures, the maximum sign
area and height for all individual freestanding signs is additionally limited by the size of
the parcel and the classification of the street to which the sign structure is closest
according to the following:
Sign Location                    Maximum Sign Height
Local street                                  20 ft
Arterial or 4-lane street                35 ft
Collector street not 4-lane            25 ft

CRITERIA

Land Development Code of Escambia County, Florida (Ordinance No. 96-3 as amended),
Section 2-6.3

CRITERION (1)
Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure or



Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure or
building and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or buildings in the same
zoning district.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
The new sign is limited by being on a local street which restricts it to 20 feet in height,
which is lower than the competitors existing signage of 35 feet.

CRITERION (2)
 The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
The special conditions are not a result of any actions on the part of the applicant.  The
parcel is utilizing a local roadway and in doing so, the sign height is less than the other
businesses who signage calculations use the arterial roadway which allows for a taller
sign. The current height requirement of 20 feet would limit visibility of the sign and not be
comparable with the other existing signs in the area.

CRITERION (3)
Granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege that
is denied by this land development code to other lands, buildings or structures in the
same zoning district.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
Granting this variance would not confer any special privilege that is denied by the code
to other lands, buildings or structures in the same zoning district.

CRITERION (4)
Strict application of the provisions of the land development code would deprive the
applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district
under the terms of the land development code and would create an unnecessary and
undue hardship on the applicant. .

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
The location of the County drainage pond prevents this site from having access off of
Loblolly, in the same manner as nearby establishments and forces them to access off of
Interstate Circle, hence requiring additional height.  Strict application of the code would
severely limit the visibility and functional use of the sign, which creates an undue
hardship on this property.

CRITERION (5)
The variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the reasonable use
of the land, building or structure.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
Given the unique hardship of the location of this property, the requested variance is the
minimum to grant the signage height associated with businesses of this type.



CRITERION (6)
The granting of the variance will be consistent with the general intent and purpose of the
land development code and that such variance will not be injurious to the area or
otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.

FINDING OF FACT:
Granting the requested variance will be consistent with the general intent and purpose of
the land development code and will not be injurious to the area or otherwise detrimental
to the public welfare.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff finds that the application meets all of the required criteria for granting of a variance
and recommends approval of the request as submitted. 

Attachments
Working Case File



 

 

 

 

 

V-2019-03 
 

 



W IL DE
LAKE BLVD

DON
J ANEAL RD

AS
HL

AN
D 

AV
E

CH
EL

LI
E

RD
INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10

KERSEY RD

INTERSTATE CIR

STRATFORD RD

IN
TE

RS
T A

TE
C T

HO
M E

ST
EA

D
LN

W
AR

IN
G

RD

M CGHEE DR

M OS
SY

C RE
EK

GILEAD
CT

KI
NG

F I
S H

E R
W

A Y

BUSH ST

RE
DW

IN
G 

DR
HO

WA
RD

DE
AN

LN
JEWELL
LEE L N

INTERSTATE10 RAMP

URSULA LN

PI
NE

FO
RE

S T
RD

LILLIE
LN

KINGFISHER
L N

ANT I O
CH

C T

CLARIDGE
PL

THRUSH
DR

DOVE RD

KATIE
MAE LN

S HARON L N

PI
NE

F O
R E

S T
R D SHARON

LN

BUSH ST

ST
AL

LW
OR

TH
LN

SE
NE

CA
 ST

W DETROIT BLVD

RE
ED

ER
S L

N

P I N
E

FOR E ST
D R

WILDE LAKE BLVD

B
LU E

JAY
W

AYROBIN
HOOD

L N

RUSHINGCREEK
RD

BUSH ST

S OL O DOS
F AMIL IAF

M ONCRIEF
LN

CAN DA
C E

D R

JA
DE

AC
RE

S R
D

NESTLE DR

MARY J O W AY

INTERSTATE

10 RAMP

PINE FOREST RD

PIN E
FORES T RD

LEPLEY RD

STODDARD RD

L AVEL LE WAY

RALEIG H CI
R

W I L D E
LA

KE
RD

EI
GH

T 
MI

LE
CR

EE
K 

RD

EIGHT MILE CREEK
RD

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

V-2019-03
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



HC/LI

Com

Com

MDR
Com

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI

Com

Com

Com
MDR

MDR

MDR

MDR

MDR

W DETROIT BLVD

KI
NG

FI
SH

ER
 W

AY

WILDE
LAKE BLVD

CH
EL

LI
E

RD
INTERSTATE 10

BLUE
JAY

W
AY

INTERSTATE CIR

HO
M

ES
T E

A D
L N

HOM E ST
EA

D
CI

R

LAVEL LE
W

AY

LA
V E

LL
E

W
AY

K INGF ISHE R
WAY

RALEIGH CIR

KI
NG

FI
SH

ER
CI

R

NO
RT

HB
UR

Y
C T

AN T I
OC

H
CT

ST
AL

LW
OR

TH
LN

RE
ED

ER
S L

N

SH
A R

ON
LN

SE
NE

CA
 ST

PI N E
FO REST

RD

PINE FOREST RD

RE
DW

IN
G 

DR

INTERSTATE 10

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

V-2019-03
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

LOBLOLLY LN



MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

C

C
C

C

MU-U

C

IC MU-U

MU-U

W DETROIT BLVD

KI
NG

FI
SH

ER
 W

AY

WILDE
LAKE BLVD

CH
EL

LI
E

RD
INTERSTATE 10

BLUE
JAY

W
AY

INTERSTATE CIR

HO
M

ES
T E

A D
L N

HOM E ST
EA

D
CI

R

LAVEL LE
W

AY

LA
V E

LL
E

W
AY

K INGF ISHER W A Y

RALEIGH CIR

KI
NG

FI
SH

ER
CI

R

NO
RT

HB
UR

Y
C T

AN T I
OC

H
CT

ST
AL

LW
OR

TH
LN

RE
ED

ER
S L

N

SH
A R

ON
LN

SE
NE

CA
 ST

PI N E
FO REST

RD

PINE FOREST RD

RE
DW

IN
G 

DR

INTERSTATE 10

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

V-2019-03
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

LOBLOLLY LN



CH
EL

L IE RD

LO BLO LLY LN

L OBL OLL Y LN
LO

BL
OL

L Y
L N

INTERSTATE 10

INTERSTATE 10 RAMP

PI
NE

FO
RE

ST
 D

R

I N
TE

RSTATE

10
RAMP W DETROIT BL VD

PINE
FOREST

RD

P INE
FOREST

RD

INTERSTATE CIR

INTERSTATE 10

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

V-2019-03
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Public Hearing Sign



Looking onto subject parcel



Looking east along Interstate 
Circle from subject property



Looking west along Interstate 
Circle toward Pine Forest Rd



Looking south across Interstate Circle 
from subject property



Another view across Interstate Circle 
from subject property



 

 

March 14th, 2019 

Escambia County Board Of Adjustment 

Variance request for an additional 15 Ft. in height for a freestanding sign. 

 

Dear Board Members, 

Loblolly Lane is an access road for vehicular entry from Pine Forest Road onto the hotel premises. The 

property being addressed on Loblolly Lane falls under the category of “Local Street” within the Escambia 

County sign ordinance (LDC 5:50), which mandates the maximum height for a freestanding sign to be 20’-

0” or less. If the property had been addressed on Pine Forest Road, which is designated as “Arterial / 4 -

Lane, the sign could be allowed and permitted at a maximum height of 35’-0”. As property owners and 

owner of the new hotel, our objective is for the sign to be noticeable from the traffic on Pine Forest Road 

and to serve as a visual confirmation of the hotel’s premises. The obvious hardship is at 20’-0” tall, the 

sign would lack the necessary height required to compete with other taller signs along Pine Forest Road. 

The additional 15’-0” in height for the sign is needed for better visibility from motorists on Pine Forest 

Road and to compete with the other existing taller signs in the area. The variance process exists to 

provide a remedy for these types of geographical and competitive hardships to commercial businesses. 

 

I thank the BOA board members for their time and consideration of this variance request. 

 

Respectfully yours, 

 

 

 

Raj Patel 

Deesha Hospitality LLC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Last Updated: 06/21/18

Escambia County Planning and Zoning
Development Services Department

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505

Phone: (850) 595-3475 • Fax: (850) 595-3481

http7/mve8cambia.com/business/ds

Board of Adjustment Application

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY -Case Number: V^-0\c\"0^ Accepted byAL*uL>** BOA Meeting: _J_^j}3

Conditional Use Request for:

Variance Request for: 15'-°" additional height for the sign.

1. Contact Information:

A. Property Owner/Applicant: RaJ Pate|. Deesha Hospitality LLC

Mailing Address: 130 Loblolly Ln. Pensacola, FL 32526

Business Phone: 850-944-8942 CeN: 850-549-7965

Email: rajpatel.fl@gmail.com

B. Authorized Agent (if applicable):

Mailing Address:

Business Phone: Cell:

Email:

Note: Owner must complete the attached Agent Affidavit. If there is more than one owner, each owner must

complete an Agent Affidavit. Application will be voided if changes to this application are found.

2. Property Information:

A. Existing Street Address: 150 Loblolly Lane - Pensacola, 32526

Parcel ID (s): 131S311100004014

B. Total acreage of the subject property: 5.95 Acres

C. Existing Zoning: HC/LI

FLU Category: Commercial

D. Is the subject property developed (if yes, explain): Yes-

New hotel construction.

E. Sanitary Sewer: Septic:



Last Updated: 06/21/18 
 

3 
 

3. Amendment Request 

A. Please provide a general description of the proposed request, explaining why it is 

necessary and/or appropriate. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

B. For Variance Request – Please address ALL the following approval conditions for 

your Variance request. (use supplement sheets as needed) 

1. Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure 
or building and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or buildings in the 
same zoning district.  
____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

 
2. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the 

applicant. 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

 

Increasing the height of the sign from 20' to 35' height is needed for increased visibilty from

motorists on Pine Forest Road and to compete with the other existing taller signs

in the immediate vicinity along Pine Forest Road. At 20' height, our sign would be

at a competitive disadvantage with the taller existing business signs.

The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.

(1) Impairment: The effectiveness of sigange that complies with the standards of this article

is materially impaired and cannot be sufficiently corrected with reasonable and complying

changes in sign luminance, brightness, contrast, placement or orientation.

(2) Legibility: The sign letter weight is adequate in height to stroke ratio - no more than 5:1

and the message is limited to a reasonable number of elements to comprehend; nevertheless, signage

that complies with the standard of this article cannot provide its primary audience (i.e., passing

vehicles) with 30 feet or less of viewing distance per inch of letter height (legibility index of 30 ft./inch or less).



Last Updated: 06/21/18 
 

4 
 

3. Granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by this land development code to other lands, buildings or structures 
in the same zoning district.  
____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

 
4. Strict application of the provisions of the land development code would deprive the 

applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district 
under the terms of the land development code and would create an unnecessary 
and undue hardship on the applicant.  
____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

 
5. The variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the 

reasonable use of the land, building or structure. 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

 
6. The granting of the variance will be consistent with the general intent and purpose 

of the land development code and that such variance will not be injurious to the 
area or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.  
____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Loblolly Lane and its adjascent properties being categorized as "local street" is 

somewhat unique in other geographical ways than other similar properties in

the same zoning district. We are only looking to compete for exposure with the

existing taller signs in the immediate vicinity along Pine Forest Road.

Yes. We believe that to be the case here.

Yes. We believe that the additional 15' in height granted for the sign would be

required for the visibility and exposure we seek from motorists and potential

customers traveling on Pine Forest Road.

In no way, shape or form would allowing the sign to be installed at 35' height be

injurous to the area nor detrimental to the public welfare.



Last Updated: 06/21/18 
 

5 
 

C. For Conditional Use Request – Please address ALL the following approval 

conditions for your Conditional Use request. (use supplement sheets as needed) 

1. General compatibility. The proposed use can be conducted and operated in a manner 

that is compatible with adjacent properties and other properties in the immediate area. 

If this is for the sale of alcohol within a 1000 ft of a place of worship or child care facility; 

please explain a-e below: a.) The existing times of use of the places of worship or child 

care facilities coincide with the hours of operation of the subject business b.) The 1000-

foot minimum distance is not achieved. c.) The conflicting uses are visible to each other. 

d.) Any on-premises consumption is outdoors. e.) Any conditions or circumstances 

mitigate any incompatibility. 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

2. Facilities and services. Public facilities and services, especially those with adopted levels 

of service, will be available, will provide adequate capacity to serve the proposed use 

consistent with capacity requirements. 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 



Last Updated: 06/21/18 
 

6 
 

3. On-site circulation. Ingress to and egress from the site and its structures will be 

sufficient, particularly regarding vehicle and pedestrian safety and convenience, efficient 

traffic flow and control, on-site parking and loading, and emergency vehicle access. 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

4. Nuisances and hazards. The scale, intensity, and operation of the use will not generate 

unreasonable noise, glare, dust, smoke, odor, vibration, electrical interference, or other 

nuisances or hazards for adjoining properties and other properties in the immediate 

area. 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

5. Solid waste. All on-site solid waste containers will be appropriately located for 

functional access, limited off-site visibility and minimal odor and other nuisance 

impacts. 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

6. Screening and buffering. Where not otherwise required by the LDC, screening and 
buffering will be provided if appropriate to the proposed use and site. 
____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

 

























Escambia County, Florida - Permit Invoice

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505
(850)595-0149

Thursday, April 11,2019

Invoice for Permit Number 19041222PBA

HOSPITALITY INC - RAJ PATEL

130 LOBLOLLY LN

PENSACOLA FL 32526

2 Convenient Payment Options Available

Pay Online with your Visa, Mastercard or via ACH (Direct Debit from Checking Account)
through the MyGovernmentOnline.org portal:
Go to www.mygovernmentonline.org and login with your user account. Click on the
"Account" button at the top right section of the page. Scroll down to the "My Permits"
section. Locate the permit number you wish to pay and click on "View Permit". Click on the
"Payments" tab. Click on the "Pay Online" button near the bottom of the page to pay the
balance with your Visa or MasterCard. Once you have completed processing your payment
please allow the permit review staff sufficient time to review your project and follow-up with
you.

Pay In-Person (Cash or Check):
Escambia County, Florida
3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505

Fee Type

BOA Variance

DSD Construction Technology Fee

Amount Due Amount Paid

$423.50 $0.00

$5.00 $0.00

$428.50 $0.00

Balance to Pay: 428.50





   
Board of Adjustment   6. B.           
Meeting Date: 05/15/2019  
CASE: CU-2019-04
APPLICANT: Staci Matz with Integrisite, Agent for Tony Lathan,

Owner 

ADDRESS: 4300 BLK Molino Road 

PROPERTY REFERENCE NO.: 01-2N-32-1320-000-004  
ZONING DISTRICT: RR, Rural Residential district  
FUTURE LAND USE: RC, Rural Community  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED CONDITIONAL USE:
Conditional Use request to allow for a telecommunication tower greater than 150 feet in
height in the Rural Residential (RR) zoning district.
 
RELEVANT AUTHORITY:
Land Development Code of Escambia County, Florida (Ordinance 96-3 as amended),
Section:3-2.3(c)(3)e.

(c) Conditional Use
e. Public utility structures greater than 150 feet in height, and telecommunications towers
of any height, excluding any industrial uses.

CRITERIA:
Land Development Code of Escambia County, Florida (Ordinance 96-3 as amended),
Section 2-6.4,
Section 4-7.12 Telecommunications towers.

CRITERION (a)
General compatibility.  The proposed use can be conducted and operated in a manner
that is compatible with adjacent properties and other properties in the immediate area.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT

The proposed tower, as described in the application documents, will be 265' in height.
The structure will be located in a 0.90 (+/-) acres section of a 12.61 (+/-) acre parent
parcel and will be accessed via Molino Road. There are several residential structures
that will be located within the 500' distance of the proposed structure. Most properties
within the 500' buffer of the property are used as single-family residences or agricultural
land. One single family dwelling is located on the parcel and is located less than 500'
feet from the tower. It appears that the use could be compatible with adjacent uses and



operate in a manner that would not impact properties in the immediate area.

CRITERION (b)
Facilities and services.  Public facilities and services, especially those with adopted
levels of service, will be available, will provide adequate capacity to serve the proposed
use consistent with capacity requirements.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT

Public facilities and services were not addressed by the applicant. The availability of
facilities and services will be evaluated during the site plan review process.

CRITERION (c)
On-site circulation.  Ingress to and egress from the site and its structures will be
sufficient, particularly regarding vehicle and pedestrian safety and convenience, efficient
traffic flow and control, on-site parking and loading, and emergency vehicle access.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT

According to the application, ingress to and egress from the site is proposed via
connection to Molino Road. Further compliance with on-site circulation will be evaluated
during the site plan review process.

CRITERION (d)
Nuisances and hazards. The scale, intensity, and operation of the use will not generate
unreasonable noise, glare, dust, smoke, odor, vibration, electrical interference, or other
nuisances or hazards for adjoining properties and other properties in the immediate area.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT

The applicant has provided documentation for the FCC application, coverage maps for
the tower, and collocation information. Also, letters stating no objection to the tower from
the FCC, FAA, FDOT and Escambia County Emergency Management have been
submitted with the application. There appears to be no nuisances and hazards for
adjoining properties in the immediate area.

CRITERION (e)
Solid waste.  All on site solid waste containers will be appropriately located for functional
access, limited off-site visibility and minimal odor and other nuisance impacts.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT

The applicant states that no solid waste will be associated with this site.

CRITERION (f)
Screening and buffering.  Where not otherwise required by the LDC, screening and



Screening and buffering.  Where not otherwise required by the LDC, screening and
buffering will be provided if appropriate to the proposed use and site.

FINDINGS OF FACT

The applicant states that screening and buffering will be provided as needed.
Compliance with the LDC screening and buffering requirements will be evaluated during
the site plan review process.

CRITERION (g)
Signs and lighting.  All exterior signs and lights, whether attached or freestanding, will be
compatible with adjoining properties and other properties in the immediate area,
especially regarding glare and traffic safety.

FINDINGS OF FACT

The applicant states that all signs and lighting will be compatible with adjoining
properties in the immediate area. Signs and lighting compatibility will be evaluated
further during the site plan review process.

CRITERION (h)
Site characteristics. The size, shape, location and topography of the site appear
adequate to accommodate the proposed use, including setbacks, intensity, bulk, height,
open space and aesthetic considerations.

FINDINGS OF FACT

The proposed development site does not appear to accommodate the proposed
use. This parcel cannot be verified as a lot of record or a physically conforming lot as the
parent parcel has been split several times in the past. See attached Lot of Record Map.
The parcel does not meet the minimum lot width requirement (100 feet) of the RR zoning
district. According to the survey submitted by the applicant, the lot width at the street
right of way is 79.88 feet.

Lot of record. A lot that is part of a subdivision that has been recorded in the official
records of Escambia County, or a lot or parcel described by metes and bounds, and the
description of which has been so recorded or accepted on or before February 8, 1996. A
lot of record does not include contiguous multiple lots under single ownership.

Sec. 3-2.3 Rural Residential district (RR).
(d) Site and building requirements. The following site and building requirements apply to
uses within the RR district:
(5) Lot width. A minimum lot width of 40 feet at the street right-of-way for cul-de-sac lots
and 100 feet at the street right-of-way for all other lots.

CRITERION (i)
Use requirements. The proposed use complies with any additional conditional use



Use requirements. The proposed use complies with any additional conditional use
requirements of the applicable zoning district, use, or other provisions of the LDC.

FINDINGS OF FACT

Application requirements. Application for LDC compliance review of proposed
telecommunication towers shall include the following completed documents for use in
evaluating compliance, but applications for conditional use approval need not include
the geotechnical report or environmental compliance checklist.
a. A geotechnical exploration report. Applicant states this will be provided during the site
plan review process.
b. An FCC/NEPA environmental compliance checklist. Applicant states this will be
provided during the site plan review process.
c. Letters indicating no objection to the tower from the Federal Communications
Commission, Federal Aviation Administration, Florida Department of Transportation, and
Escambia County Emergency Management.
Federal Communications Commission-Received and provided as part of the
application.
Federal Aviation Administration- Received and provided as part of the application.
Florida Department of Transportation-Received provided as part of the application.
Escambia County Emergency Management-Received and provided as part of the
application.
d. Coverage maps for this tower-Received and provided as part of the application
e. Collocation information-Received and part of the application.
 

STAFF FINDINGS
Staff finds that the proposed use does not meet criterion (H) for Conditional Use
approval and recommends denial. The parcel does not meet the lot width requirements
of the RR zoning district and cannot be confirmed as a physically conforming lot. The
parcel does not meet the minimum lot width requirement (100 feet) of the RR zoning
district. According to the survey submitted by the applicant, the lot width at the street
right of way is 79.88 feet.

BOA DECISION

Attachments
Working Case File



CU-2019-04 



WILDWOODRD

MOLINO RD

BA
RR

IN
EA

U 
PA

RK
 S

CH
OO

L R
D

SU
NS

HI
NE

 H
ILL

 R
D

BA
RR

IN
EA

U 
LN

SETTLES RD

BARTON RD

SUNCREST LN

FO
UR

 S
TA

R 
FA

RM
 R

D

BLUE BERRY LN

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000
Ft

CU-2019-04
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Caleb MacCartee

Legend
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD



RR

RR
RR

Agr Agr

Agr Agr
RR

RR

RMU

RMU

RR

RMU

SUNSHINE HILL RD

BA
RR

IN
EA

U 
PA

RK
 S

CH
OO

L R
D

MOLINO RD
SETTLES RD

SUNCREST LN

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000
Ft

CU-2019-04
500' RADIUS ZONING MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Caleb MacCartee

Legend
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD



AG AG

RC

RC RC RC

RC

RC

RC

RC

RC

RC

RC

RC

RC

RC
SUNSHINE HILL RD

BA
RR

IN
EA

U 
PA

RK
 S

CH
OO

L R
D

MOLINO RD
SETTLES RD

SUNCREST LN

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000
Ft

CU-2019-04
FUTURE LAND USE MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Caleb MacCartee

Legend
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD



SETTLES RD MOLINO RD

0 300 600 900 1,200
Ft

CU-2019-04
AERIAL

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Caleb MacCartee

Legend
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD



 -1

 -1

 -1

 -1
 -1

 -2

 -2

 -3

 -3

 -4

 -4

 BARRINEAU

-1-1

-1-1

-1-1

-2-1

-2-1

-2-1

-3-1

-4-1

-5-1

1

10-1

100

10
0 
R/
W

10
1.3

4

102.38104.71104.72

10
6.0

7

106.2
6

106.2
8

10
90

.9
3

11

11
0.
51

1101 11011101 1101

1101

111.2
4

111.3

11
1.
91

11
8.
95

12 12

120

12
0.5

4

1201

1201-1

121.8
7

122.63

1220 1220 1220

12
20

-2
-1

12
82
.2
7

1296.99

1297.19

12
98
.3

1301

1301-1

13
11

.5

1320

1320

1323.15

1401

1401

1401
1401 1401

1401-1-1

15

158.4

16
0

16
5.
18

18
1.
3

19
0

192

193.35

2

2

20-1

200

205.5
1

208.71 208.71

20
8.
71

20
8.
71

20
8.
71

20
8.
71

208.71

208.72

210

21
0

21
0

210

21
0

210 210

2101

2101

2101
21012101

2101

2101 21
01
-1

21
01
-1

1-
1

2101-12-1

2101-13-1

2101-14-1

2101-15-1

2101-16-1
2101-17-1

2101-18-1
2101-19-1

2101-2-1

2101-2 1-1

2101-3-1

21
01
-6

-1

2101-7-1

21
01
-9

-1

2102-1

2102-4

213.47

22
0

223.11

22
6.
56

228.15

230

2300

23
2.
17

23302330-1

23
7.
55

2401

2401-1

2430

2430

2430

2430-1-1

248.33

254.19

25
55
.8
6

257.42

259.87

26
0.
57

268.23

270

27
5

27
5

278.17

28
4.5

4

286.3
2

288

290.24

29
8.
8

299.7

30

30
0

300

309.13

31

31.84

3101

3101

3101

3101-10-1

3101-2

3101-3

3102

31
5.
72

320 320

320.71

32013201

3201-1

3297533 R/W

33
' 
CO

 R
/W

33
0

33
0

330

3340

33
7

35

358.79

36 36

37
3.
5

396.37

398.28

399.21

40

400

400

41
0

41
7.
44 42
0

4200 4200-1 4200-2

424.47
4310

46
.7
6

46
1.0

4

466.9

469.89

47

470

48
5.
3

48
8.
4

48
8.
4

48
8.
4

490.98

50

50 R/W

51
7.7

5

52
1.
11 526.18

537.2

538

6

6

60
60
.9
7

608.22

62
3.
65

632.19«

632.4

634.21

63
6

64
2.
26

65
.57

65
0.
47

65
0.
57

657.06

657.97

66
0

660«

66
4.
26

668«

676.18

680.48

7

70

70
70

70

75

77
.0
9

77
.1
6 

CH
S

77
.2
 C

HS

77.4

77
6.
6«

80

80 CHS

80 CHS

82
.6
4

83
1.
4

88

88.45

90

90

90
91
8.1

9

923.11

97
0.
6

98
.7
6

AERIAL PHOTO NO. 81  (2-44)

AS APPROXIMATE .. UNLESS VERIFIED BY SURVEY

BA
RR

IN
EA

U 
PA

RK
 S

CH
OO

L 
RD

CONTENTS OF THIS MAP SHOULD BE CONSIDERED

DB 550 P 231/235

MOLINO RD

NOTES:

OR OTHER MEANS

PARK SCHOOL

PROPERTY APPRAISAL PURPOSES ONLY.

SECTION 1

SETTLES RD

ST
AT
E 
RO
AD
 N
O. 
18
2

SUNCREST LN

SUNSHINE HILL RD

T-
2N

 R
-3

1W

T-2N R-32W

THIS MAP WAS COMPILED FOR ESCAMBIA COUNTY

1996 Section Map
This map is a graphical representation provided for information
 purposes only. It has been compiled from the Escambia County
 Property Appraiser's 1996 microfiche maps. This map does not
 confer or guarantee any rights and the burden of proof
 regarding a Lot of Record is upon the owner of the lot. This
 map is not guaranteed accurate or suitable for any use other 
 than that for which it was designed.

DSB/LRP/ADH/2009

cgmaccartee
Polygon



01-2N-32-1320-001-0044290 MOLINO RD1.5
AMY DENISE

01-2N-32-1320-000-004
4300 BLK MOLINO RD

11.11
LATHAN TONY D

01-2N-32-1320-000-002
4300 MOLINO RD

1.76
PERRY DAVID & BELINDA

01-2N-32-1320-000-000
4320 MOLINO RD

1.68
MANNING NEWTON ANDREW 2/60 INT

RR

RR

RR

RR

RR

RR

RR

RR

RR

RR

RR

RR

RR

RR

RR

Agr

Agr Agr

Agr Agr

RMU
RMU RMU RMU

RR

ZONING MAP

1 inch = 300 feetPlanning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Caleb MacCartee Ü



PUBLIC HEARING SIGN



LOOKING NORTH ONTO PROPERTY



LOOKING WEST ALONG MOLINO RD



LOOKING SOUTH FROM SUBJECT PROPERTY



LOOKING EAST ALONG MOLINO RD



Last Updated: 06/21/18

Escambia County Planning and Zoning
Development Services Department

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505

Phone: (850) 595-3475 • Fax: (850) 595-3481

httpV/myescambia.com/business/ds

Board of Adjustment Application

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY •Case NumberLtJ"'7^/^"^ Accepted byALnJJo** BOA Meeting: ^ P-0\ (^
Conditional Use Request for: New Telecommunication Tower

Variance Request for: NA

1. Contact Information:

A. Property Owner/Applicant: Tony Lathan c/o New CingularWireless PCS, LLC

Mailing Address: 8640 SunsetView Lane, Molino, FL 32577

Business Phone: 318-324-9394 Cell: 615-830-1016

Email: smatz@integrisite.net

B. Authorized Agent (if applicable): Integrisite (Staci Matz)

Mailing Address: 214 Expn Circle Suite4, Wast MnnrnP I A71292

Business Phone: Cell: 615-830-1016

Email: smatz@integrisite.net

Note: Owner must complete the attached Agent Affidavit. If there is more than one owner, each owner must

complete an Agent Affidavit. Application willbe voidedif changes to this application are found.

2. Property Information:

A. Existing Street Address: 4300 BLK, Molino, FL32577 Latitude 30.721377 Longitude87.399296

Parcel ID (s): 012N321320000004

B. Total acreage of the subject property: 11-11

C. Existing Zoning: RR

FLU Category: RR

D. Is the subject property developed (ifyes, explain):

E. Sanitary Sewer: N/A Septic: N/A

2



































































BARRINEAU PARK

14509562

NE 1/4, SEC. 01, T-02-N, R-32-W

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

R
A

W
L

A
N

D
 
T

O
W

E
R

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

PROJECT NO.

18-1060

S
M

W
 
E

n
g

i
n

e
e

r
i
n

g
 
G

r
o

u
p

,
 
I
n

c
.

DETAIL OVERVIEW SCALE: 1" = 60'

1
5
8
 
B

u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
C

e
n
t
e
r
 
D

r
i
v
e

B
i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

,
 
A

l
a
b
a
m

a
 
3
5
2
4
4

P
h
:
 
2
0
5
-
2
5
2
-
6
9
8
5

w
w

w
.
s
m

w
e
n
g
.
c
o
m

H
I
G

H
 
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
S



BARRINEAU PARK

14509562

NE 1/4, SEC. 01, T-02-N, R-32-W

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

R
A

W
L

A
N

D
 
T

O
W

E
R

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

PROJECT NO.

18-1060

S
M

W
 
E

n
g

i
n

e
e

r
i
n

g
 
G

r
o

u
p

,
 
I
n

c
.

1
5
8
 
B

u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
C

e
n
t
e
r
 
D

r
i
v
e

B
i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

,
 
A

l
a
b
a
m

a
 
3
5
2
4
4

P
h
:
 
2
0
5
-
2
5
2
-
6
9
8
5

w
w

w
.
s
m

w
e
n
g
.
c
o
m

H
I
G

H
 
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
S

’ ’

PARENT TRACT OVERVIEW NOT TO SCALE



   
Board of Adjustment   6. C.           
Meeting Date: 05/15/2019  
CASE: CU-2019-07
APPLICANT: Catalina Filip, Owner 

ADDRESS: 8925 Gulf Beach Hwy 

PROPERTY REFERENCE NO.: 33-2S-31-2000-120-001  
ZONING DISTRICT: HC/LI, Heavy Commercial Light Industrial  
FUTURE LAND USE: MU-U, Mixed-Use Urban  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED CONDITIONAL USE:
Conditional use request to allow for a salvage yard in HC/LI zoning and Conditional use
request to allow a salvage yard within an Airfield Influence Planning District 1 (AIPD-1).
 
RELEVANT AUTHORITY:
Land Development Code of Escambia County, Florida (Ordinance 96-3 as amended),
Section:3-2.11(c)(5).c

c. Salvage yards not otherwise requiring approval as solid waste processing facilities

and Sec. 4-4.5 (b)(5).f.3
(5) AIPD-1 requirements
f. Conditional uses. The following uses require conditional use approval by the Board of
Adjustment (BOA), regardless of whether they are permitted within the applicable zoning
district:
1. Borrow pits and borrow pit reclamation.
2. Solid waste collection points, transfer stations, or processing facilities.
3. Salvage yards.

CRITERIA:
Land Development Code of Escambia County, Florida (Ordinance 96-3 as amended),
Section 2-6.4
Sale of Alcohol, Section 4-7.5(e)

CRITERION (a)
General compatibility.  The proposed use can be conducted and operated in a manner
that is compatible with adjacent properties and other properties in the immediate area.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
The full range of uses allowed by the LDC definition of a salvage yard includes the
disassembly, shredding, compaction, bailing, or other handling of scrap or discarded



material or equipment for salvage, including metals, paper, rags, tires, bottles and cans,
motor vehicles, machinery, appliances, and structural steel.
Given the mixed use nature of the surrounding properties and the close proximity to
environmentally sensitive lands along Bayou Grande, the proposed use is not
compatible with the surrounding area.

CRITERION (b)
Facilities and services.  Public facilities and services, especially those with adopted
levels of service, will be available, will provide adequate capacity to serve the proposed
use consistent with capacity requirements.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
The applicant has stated that water, electric and sewer facilities are presently being used
on site. All the following facilities and services are existing would still need to be
reviewed through the Site Plan Review Process.
 

CRITERION (c)
On-site circulation.  Ingress to and egress from the site and its structures will be
sufficient, particularly regarding vehicle and pedestrian safety and convenience, efficient
traffic flow and control, on-site parking and loading, and emergency vehicle access.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
There is an existing driveway onto Gulf Beach Highway that is being used by the owner
for the current used car business. A site plan was has been submitted during the site
plan pre-application process. The county would relying on Florida Department of
Transportation for comments since Gulf Beach Hwy is a State roadway for ingress and
egress access. There are no measurements at this time particularly regarding vehicle
and pedestrian safety and convenience efficient traffic flow and control, on-site parking
and loading, and emergency vehicle access, these will be reviewed during the Site Plan
Review process.

CRITERION (d)
Nuisances and hazards. The scale, intensity, and operation of the use will not generate
unreasonable noise, glare, dust, smoke, odor, vibration, electrical interference, or other
nuisances or hazards for adjoining properties and other properties in the immediate area.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
The proposed use could generate unreasonable noise, dust, odor, vibration, or other
nuisances or hazards for adjoining properties and other properties in the immediate
area. The nature of salvaging automobiles has the potential to accumulate flammable
materials onsite which would create a nuisance within the Accident Potential Zone. 

CRITERION (e)
Solid waste.  All on site solid waste containers will be appropriately located for functional



Solid waste.  All on site solid waste containers will be appropriately located for functional
access, limited off-site visibility and minimal odor and other nuisance impacts.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
The applicant states solid waste service is currently being used for the subject
property, This will be further evaluated during the Site Plan Review Process.

CRITERION (f)
Screening and buffering.  Where not otherwise required by the LDC, screening and
buffering will be provided if appropriate to the proposed use and site.

FINDINGS OF FACT:
The project will need to be approved through the Site Plan Review Process and meet
the following Design Manual (DSM) criteria.
DSM 2-2 Landscape areas and quantities. 

2-2.1 Parcel total. No parcel shall provide less than 15 percent landscape area,
regardless of the minimum pervious lot coverage required by the applicable zoning
district. On-site permeable retention/detention ponds and permeable swales qualify as
landscape area if their maximum depths are no more than three feet and their side
slopes are no steeper than 2:1 (horizontal to vertical).
 
2-2.3 Buffers. Based on broad land use categories, where a proposed new use or
expanding existing use is likely to adversely impact an adjoining use, a landscape buffer
is required to minimize or eliminate those impacts. The buffer shall protect the lower
intensity use from the higher intensity use and provide an aesthetically attractive barrier
between the uses. It shall function to reduce or eliminate incompatibility between uses
such that the long-term continuation of either use is not threatened by impacts from the
other. Buffers shall be provided according to the following standards:
a. Required by use. The character of adjoining land uses primarily determines the type of
buffering required.
1. Residential and non-residential. All residential uses shall be buffered from all
non-residential uses, other than passive recreation, conservation, or agricultural uses,
according to the buffer types established in this section and following non-residential
categories:
 
a. Heavy commercial and industrial. Heavy commercial and industrial uses consistent
with the Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial (HC/LI) and Industrial (Ind) zoning
districts shall provide a Type-C buffer supplemented with an opaque fence or wall.

CRITERION (g)
Signs and lighting.  All exterior signs and lights, whether attached or freestanding, will
be compatible with adjoining properties and other properties in the immediate area,
especially regarding glare and traffic safety.

FINDINGS OF FACT:
The applicant already has a sign for there used car lot. The salvage operation is an
extension of the used car lot. However, during the Site Plan review process both the



extension of the used car lot. However, during the Site Plan review process both the
sign and exterior lights will be address.

CRITERION (h)
Site characteristics. The size, shape, location and topography of the site appear adequate
to accommodate the proposed use, including setbacks, intensity, bulk, height, open
space and aesthetic considerations .

FINDINGS OF FACT:
Based on the applicant's submitted plan for Development Review pre-application
the size, shape and location of the parcel will not accommodate the proposed use. This
site is very constrained to be part of any type of salvage yard. The aesthetic of of a
salvage yard do not provide the same land use intensity as the surrounding properties.
Most properties within a 500 ft radius are vacant or single family. There is only two
commercial business within the area all other lots are single family or vacant. 

CRITERION (i)
Use requirements. The proposed use complies with any additional conditional use
requirements of the applicable zoning district, use, or other provisions of the LDC.

FINDINGS OF FACT:
There are no other specific Conditional Use requirements for this use beyond those of
the zoning and airfield districts.
 

STAFF FINDINGS
Given the specific location of this proposed use relative to surrounding residential uses,
natural areas, and the limitations of the APZ, staff recommends denial of the request.

BOA DECISION
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FINDINGS

Attachments
Working Case File



CU-2019-07 



DOG TRACK RD

SAN JUAN

CALZADA
GULF BEACH HWY

WAYCROSS
AVE

SAN MIGUEL

CALZADA

B RO

OKSTONE

WAY

CAM

SHIR

E CIR

MARY
FL

EMING DR

LEDBETTER LN

SON

O RA

CALZ A DA

SAN
JUAN

GRANDE

FUEL FA RM RD

BRADFIELD

DR

WADE
AVE

MERCADO AVE

WELLER
AVE

DAI SY LN

GRAINGER AVE

WELLER AVE

MARTEL
AVE
FENCELINE RD

GANDY LN

LA N DI
NG

LN

OWENBELL LN

NEPTUNE DR

SIDNEY RD

GANDY
LN

SOMERVILLE CT

VALDOSTA AVE

WOLVERINE ST

SHERMAN
AVE

KINGSPORT
AVE

KEPLER
AVE

OW
EN

BE

LL LNBARRIOS
CI R

GRANA
D A

CAMIN

O

CO
BB

LEBROOK DR

PAZ PL

LARAMIE

DR

ROBERTSON RD

REDOUBT AVE

GULF BREEZE AVE

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 825 1,650 2,475

Ft

CU-2019-07
500' RADIUS LOCATION

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



MDR HC/LI

HC/LI-NA

HC/LI

MDR

MDRHC/LI

MDR

MDR

HC/LI

WELLER
AVE

KINGSPORT AVEWADE AVE

MERCADO AVE

WELLER AVE

AILEEN DR

GULF BEACH HWY

GERALD RD

GRAINGER AVE

GERALD RDKEPLER AVE

MARS
DRBERYL

AVE

WOLVERINE ST

SHERMAN
AVE

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 290 580 870

Ft

CU-2019-07
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



MU-S

MU-U

C

CC

MU-U

MU-U
WELLER

AVE

KINGSPORT AVEWADE AVE

MERCADO AVE

WELLER AVE

AILEEN DR

GULF BEACH HWY

GERALD RD

GRAINGER AVE

GERALD RDKEPLER AVE

MARS
DRBERYL

AVE

WOLVERINE ST

SHERMAN AVE

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 290 580 870

Ft

CU-2019-07
500' RADIUS FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



GERALD RD

AILEEN
DR

GERALD RD

GULF BEACH HWY

BERYL AVE

WADE AVE

SHERMAN AVE

WELLER AVE

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 160 320 480

Ft

CU-2019-07
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



GERALD RD

AILEEN
DR

GERALD RD

GULF BEACH HWY

BERYL AVE

WADE AVE

SHERMAN AVE

WELLER AVE

AIPD 1

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 160 320 480

Ft

CU-2019-07
AIPD 1 MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



PLANETARIUM

AVE

SAN JUAN GRANDE

WADE AVE

WELLER
AVE

SAN JUAN

CALZADA

MERCADO AVE

WELLER AVE

AILEEN DR

GULF BEACH HWY

GERALD RD

GRAINGER AVE

GERALD RD

MARS
DR

NEPTUNE DR

BERYL
AVE

WOLVERINE ST

SHERMAN
AVE

KINGSPORT AVE

KEPLER AVE

APZ 2

PARCELS
Pensacola_APZs_2010

<all other values>
DESCRIPTIO

APZ 1
APZ 2
CLEAR ZONE
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 330 660 990

Ft

CU-2019-07
500' RADIUS APZ-2

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer















Date :4/11/2019

FIL'S GROUP LLC
8925 GULF BEACH HWY PENSACOLA FL 32507

PH: 850 466-3001, Cell :850-291-5445,
email:filsgroupauto@gmail.com

Department of Growth Management
3363 West Park Avenue,
Pensacola , Florida 32505

Re: Conditional Use for SalvageYard
Parcel: Portion of33-2S31-2000-120-001

Owners : FIL'S GROUP LLC

Address : 8925 Gulf Beach Hwy, Pensacola FL 32507 .

FIL'S GROUP LLC is a local used auto dealer company owned andoperated by Catalina &
Serghei Filip a stateCertified Independent and Salvage Dealer (VI10913672).
The conditional userequested for salvage yard will allow usto extend ouroperation and bein
compliance withFlorida Development Code.The purpose use of the rear portion of the property
will be for storage the Inoperable Inventory.

Thank you,

Catalina Filip

If you have anu questions, please callCatalinaFilip @ 850-291-5445

































   
Board of Adjustment   6. D.           
Meeting Date: 05/15/2019  
CASE: CU-2019-08
APPLICANT: Allara Mills Gutcher, Agent for Gulf Power 

ADDRESS: Multiple addresses 

PROPERTY REFERENCE NO.: Portions of 21-4N-31-1101-0000-00;
16-4N-31-1000-000-001;
22-4N-31-1000-000-000; and
15-4N-31-1101-000-000

 

ZONING DISTRICT: Agricultural district (Agr)  
FUTURE LAND USE: Agriculture (AG) and Rural Community

(RC)  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: NA 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED CONDITIONAL USE:
The request for the conditional use permit is to develop a solar power generation facility.
 
RELEVANT AUTHORITY:
Land Development Code of Escambia County, Florida (Ordinance 96-3 as amended),
Section:3-2.2 Agricultural district (Agr)., (c) Conditional uses, (5) Industrial and
related, b. Power plants.

CRITERIA:
Land Development Code of Escambia County, Florida (Ordinance 96-3 as amended),
Section 2-6.4
Sale of Alcohol, Section 4-7.5(e)

CRITERION (a)
General compatibility.  The proposed use can be conducted and operated in a manner
that is compatible with adjacent properties and other properties in the immediate area.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
Based on the applicant's description of the proposed use and staff's review of the
adjacent and surrounding properties, the proposed solar power generation facility can
operate in manner that is compatible with the surrounding zoning permitted uses and
intensities. Using the site survey signed and sealed by Robert A. Bannerman, PSM,
dated 11-10-2017, submitted by the applicant, the proposed site will be 639.07 acres; 
as proposed, no infrastructure will be necessary to serve this development. There will be
no habitable space constructed as part of this development. The Facility will
be monitored remotely and will not require onsite personnel for day-to-day
operation. Personnel will occasionally visit the site to conduct required maintenance



activities. If the conditional use is approved, the applicant must submit the project to the
Development Review Committee for review, approval and to obtain a Development
Order. 

CRITERION (b)
Facilities and services.  Public facilities and services, especially those with adopted
levels of service, will be available, will provide adequate capacity to serve the proposed
use consistent with capacity requirements.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT

Based on the applicant's description of the proposed project, no public facilities are
needed to serve the development. There will be no demand for mass transit, school
facilities, potable water, sanitary sewer, solid waste or parks. 

CRITERION (c)
On-site circulation.  Ingress to and egress from the site and its structures will be
sufficient, particularly regarding vehicle and pedestrian safety and convenience, efficient
traffic flow and control, on-site parking and loading, and emergency vehicle access.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
Based on the applicants description, ingress and egress to and from the site will be from
W. Bogia Road. No other access points are planned. The ingress/egress point will be
utilized by employees to construct, maintain, and operate the facility. Following
construction, the site will be monitored remotely and will not require onsite personnel for
day to day operation. No increase in traffic will be generated by the project on a typical
day. This site will not be open to the general public. No pedestrian activity outside of
employee activity will occur on-site. Once a formal project application is submitted, all of
the requirements for new development will be reviewed and implemented during the Site
Plan Review process. 

CRITERION (d)
Nuisances and hazards. The scale, intensity, and operation of the use will not generate
unreasonable noise, glare, dust, smoke, odor, vibration, electrical interference, or other
nuisances or hazards for adjoining properties and other properties in the immediate area.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
Based on the application language, no noise, glare, dust, smoke, odor, vibration,
electrical interference or other nuisances will be generated as a result of this
development. The photovoltaic solar panels proposed for installation at the site are
designed with anti-reflective coating and are designed to absorb light rather than reflect
it. This site will be a passive generation facility. No effects on the surrounding properties
are anticipated. All of the development standards in the LDC will be reviewed during the
Site Plan Review process.

CRITERION (e)
Solid waste.  All on site solid waste containers will be appropriately located for functional



Solid waste.  All on site solid waste containers will be appropriately located for functional
access, limited off-site visibility and minimal odor and other nuisance impacts.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
Based on the application and the type of development, as proposed, there will be no
solid waste located on-site. During the Site Plan Review process the plan will be review
against current regulations and comments to address solid waste will be provided , if
nrequired by the current regulations.

CRITERION (f)
Screening and buffering.  Where not otherwise required by the LDC, screening and
buffering will be provided if appropriate to the proposed use and site.

FINDINGS OF FACT:
The parcel's size and the location of the proposed development will serve as natural
screening and buffering for surrounding properties; those specific standards will be
reviewed for and applied during the Site Plan Review process. 

CRITERION (g)
Signs and lighting.  All exterior signs and lights, whether attached or freestanding, will
be compatible with adjoining properties and other properties in the immediate area,
especially regarding glare and traffic safety.

FINDINGS OF FACT:
Based on the application, exterior lighting will be restricted to the solar collector yard
area and used only during maintenance operations at night. Although the applicant did
not address signs, any proposed signs will be reviewed during the Site Plan Review
process.

CRITERION (h)
Site characteristics. The size, shape, location and topography of the site appear adequate
to accommodate the proposed use, including setbacks, intensity, bulk, height, open
space and aesthetic considerations .

FINDINGS OF FACT:
Based on the applicant's analysis of the land surface requirement to build a facility as
proposed, it appears that the area identified by the survey provided, will accommodate
the proposed use. Although there are large portions of the parcel identified as wetlands
and FEMA's Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA), the applicant is actively working with
County staff to minimize and mitigate any potential environmental impacts; the nature of
the proposed project will continue to provide the open space protection and reinforce the
area's habitat biodiversity and ecology. 

CRITERION (i)
Use requirements. The proposed use complies with any additional conditional use



Use requirements. The proposed use complies with any additional conditional use
requirements of the applicable zoning district, use, or other provisions of the LDC.

FINDINGS OF FACT:
There are no additional conditional use requirements of the applicable zoning for the
proposed use.
 

STAFF FINDINGS
Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use request, pending receipt of a
Development Order from the Development Review Committee. 

BOA DECISION
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FINDINGS

Attachments
Working Case File



CU-2019-08 



LA MBE RT BRIDGE

RD

S P INE BARREN
RD W BOGIA RD

HIGH W AY 16 4

BLA CKRD

E BOGIA RD

MAIN ST

MYSTICSPRINGS RD

N P IN
E

BARREN
RD

COT TON
CREEK RD

N
CE

NT
UR

Y
BL

V D

S 
CE

NT
UR

Y B
LV

D

ROD EO LN

S
CE

NT
UR

Y
BL

VD

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 3,000 6,000 9,000

Ft

CU-2019-08 
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

SANTA ROSA
COUNTY



Agr

Agr

Agr

Agr

Pub

Agr

RR

RR

RR
Agr

Agr
W BOGIA RD

BLACK RD

E BOGIA RD

COT TON C REEK RD

MYSTIC

SPRINGS

RD

GOOSE
CREEK

TR L

S 
CE

NT
UR

Y B
LV

D

S P INE BARREN RD

R ODE
OLN

S 
CE

NT
UR

Y B
LV

D

RA
IL

RO
AD

 ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,400 2,800 4,200

Ft

CU-2019-08 
500' RADIUS ZONING 

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



AG

AG

AG

RC

AG

RC

RCAG

W BOGIA RD

BLACK RD

E BOGIA RD

COT TON C REEK RD

MYSTIC

SPRINGS

RD

GOOSE
CREEK

TR L

S 
CE

NT
UR

Y B
LV

D

S P INE BARREN RD

R ODE
OLN S 

CE
NT

UR
Y B

LV
D

RA
IL

RO
AD

 ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,400 2,800 4,200

Ft

CU-2019-08 
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



W BOGIA RD

BLACK RD

E BOGIA RD

MYSTIC

SPRINGS RD

COTT ON C REEK RDS PINE BARREN RD

GOOSE
CREEK

T RL

S 
CE

NT
UR

Y B
LV

D

R O DE
OL N S 

CE
NT

UR
Y B

LV
D

RA
IL

RO
AD

 ST

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
WETLANDS_20060 1,400 2,800 4,200

Ft

CU-2019-08 
AERIAL/WETLANDS MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Notice of Public 
Hearing Sign



Looking East 
onto Bogia



Looking 
Northwest 
from Bogia
Road onto 
property



Looking 
Southeast 
across Bogia
Road



Date:  April 12, 2019 
 

To:  Allyson Lindsay 
 Escambia County  

Planning and Zoning Division 
3363 W. Park Place 
Pensacola, FL  32505 

 
 

From:   Allara Mills Gutcher, AICP 
 Managing Principal 
 the planning collaborative 
 2311 Lee Street 
 Lynn Haven, FL  32444 

Letter of Transmittal 

 
 

 
Project Name:  Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 
 
Purpose:   Conditional Use Permit Application   
 
Materials Submitted:   1) Letter of Transmittal (this document) 
      2) Conditional Use Permit application 
    3) Compatibility Analysis 
    4) Check for $1,275.50 
    5) Tax notices for each respective parcel (to show  
        ownership) 
    6) SEC filing document to show Dennis Dubose is a 
        managing member of the company.  
 
All materials are also submitted via electronic transfer to 
malindsay@myescambia.com 
                  
Please accept this submittal package for the scheduling of a hearing before the 
Board of Adjustment on May 15, 2019. 
 
 
 
 

 



Last Updated: 06/21/18

Escambia County Planning and Zoning \ ^\U^-\\ 2'~~| C \ oft:
Development Services Department

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, FL 32505

Phone: (850) 595-3475 • Fax: (850) 595-3481

http://myescambia.com/business/ds

Board of Adjustment Application

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY -Case Numberdu-ZiV^*' Accepted bvAU^^.., BOA Meeting: //^//?

Conditional Use Request for: Development of a Solar Power Generation Facility

Variance Request for: Not Applicable

1. Contact Information:

A. Property Owner/Applicant: Gulf Power, as applicant

Mailing Address: One Energy Place, Pensacola, FL 32520

Business Phone: Cell:

Email:

B. Authorized Agent (if applicable): Allara Mills Gutcher, AICP

Mailing Address: 2311 Lee Street, Lynn Haven, FL 32444

Business Phone: 850.319.9180 Cell: 850.319.9180

Email: allara@theplanningcollaborative.com

Note: Owner must complete the attached Agent Affidavit. If there is more than one owner, each owner must

complete an Agent Affidavit. Application will be voided if changes to this application are found.

2. Property Information:

A. Existing Street Address: 398 W. Bogia Road. The site is approximately one

mile west of the intersection of S. Century Blvd (SR 95 S./US 29) and W. Bogia

Road and is on the north side of W. Bogia Road (Exhibit A).

Parcel ID (s): portions of 21-4N-31-1101-0000-00; 16-4N-31-1000-0000-01;

22-4N-31-1000-0000-00; and 15-4N-31-1101-0000-00.

B. Total acreage of the subject property: +/- 639

C. Existing Zoning: Agriculture (See Exhibit B)

FLU Category: Agriculture and Rural Community (See Exhibit C)

http://myescambia.com/business/ds


Last Updated: 06/21/18 
 

 

D. Is the subject property developed (if yes, explain):  The property is not currently 
developed and has been disturbed with Silvicultural/timber production uses.  

 
E. Sanitary Sewer:   Septic:    (neither) 

3. Amendment Request 

A. Please provide a general description of the proposed request, explaining why it is 

necessary and/or appropriate. 
 

The request for the conditional use permit is to develop a solar power generation 
facility in the vicinity of McDavid in northern Escambia County, on approximately 639 
acres of vacant land addressed as 398 W. Bogia Road. 
 
Gulf Power Company (“Gulf Power”) seeks to construct a 74.5 megawatt (MW) 
photovoltaic (PV) solar energy center (“Facility”) capable of producing emissions-free 
electricity for approximately 15,000 homes annually, which is equivalent to removing 
approximately 12,000 cars from the road each year.  The Facility will generate clean, 
renewable energy by converting sunlight via photovoltaic solar panels into direct 
current (DC) electricity.  The direct current flows from the panels through inverters and 
is converted into alternating current (AC) used by local electric utilities.  Finally, the 
electricity travels through transformers, and the voltage is boosted for delivery onto 
the transmission lines so the local electric utility can distribute the zero-emissions 
electricity to homes and businesses.  
 
The project site is currently disturbed silviculture (timber harvesting) land in northern 
Escambia County. The property is primarily designated as Agriculture on the Future 
Land Use Map, with a portion of the site in the northwest quadrant designated as Rural 
Community. The entire site is designated as Agriculture on the Zoning Map.  Both the 
Agriculture and Rural Community FLU categories allow for “public and civic” land uses, 
among other types of uses.   
 
The Agriculture zoning district permits “public and civic uses” to include “public utility 
structures 150 feet or less in height” (Section 3-2.2(b)(4), Escambia County Land 
Development Code (LDC) dated 8/2/2018).  However, “power plants” are considered a 
conditional use by Section 3-2.2(c)(5).  
 
The Escambia County LDC defines ‘power plant’ as follows (in part): 
 

“An electrical power generation facility operated by a public utility or independent 
power producer that converts one or more energy sources to provide electricity to 
the electrical transmission grid and distribution system.”  
 

The proposed facility will meet the definition of “power plant” as adopted by the 
Escambia County LDC. 
 
 



Last Updated: 06/21/18 
 

No water or sewer infrastructure will be necessary to serve this development.  There 
will be no habitable space constructed as part of this development.  The Facility will be 
monitored remotely and will not require onsite personnel for day-to-day operation.  
Personnel will occasionally visit the site to conduct required maintenance activities.   
 
Minimal wetland impacts are anticipated.  A culverted crossing will be created to allow 
for vehicular access to the western portion of the site.  The total anticipated wetland 
impact is expected to be less than 0.5 acres. Impervious surface on this site will be 
approximately 2.07% and is primarily composed of the gravel pathways throughout the 
site and the solar collection yard.  Gulf Power will permit the wetland impacts and 
stormwater management system through an Environmental Resource Permit (ERP) 
from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP).  Gulf Power will also 
secure the appropriate permit with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE).  
 
The construction of residential dwellings are not part of this development plan, and 
therefore density calculations are not applicable.  
 
The primary ingress and egress to the site will be from an existing pathway connecting 
to W. Bogia Road.  The improvement of this pathway will be only that which is required 
to sustain light vehicular traffic for occasional employee access.  The site will not be 
accessible to the public.  
 

 

B. For Variance Request – Please address ALL the following approval conditions for 

your Variance request. (use supplement sheets as needed) 

1. Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure 
or building and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or buildings in the 
same zoning district. 

 
Not applicable.  

 
 

2. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the 

applicant. 

Not applicable.  

 

3. Granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by this land development code to other lands, buildings or structures 
in the same zoning district. 

 

Not applicable.  

 
 

4. Strict application of the provisions of the land development code would deprive the 
applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district 



Last Updated: 06/21/18 
 

under the terms of the land development code and would create an unnecessary and 
undue hardship on the applicant. 

 

Not applicable.  
 

5. The variance granted is the minimum variance that will make possible the reasonable 

use of the land, building or structure. 

 

Not applicable.  
 

6. The granting of the variance will be consistent with the general intent and purpose of 
the land development code and that such variance will not be injurious to the area or 
otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

 

Not applicable.  

 
C. For Conditional Use Request – Please address ALL the following approval conditions 

for your Conditional Use request. (use supplement sheets as needed) 

1. General compatibility. If this is for the sale of alcohol within a 1000 ft of a place of 

worship or child care facility; please explain a-e below: a.) The existing times of use of the 

places of worship or child care facilities coincide with the hours of operation of the 

subject business b.) The 1000- foot minimum distance is not achieved. c.) The conflicting 

uses are visible to each other. d.) Any on-premises consumption is outdoors. e.) Any 

conditions or circumstances mitigate any incompatibility. 

 
There is no sale of alcohol associated with this use.  Please see accompanying 
Compatibility Analysis (Exhibit D).  

 
 

2. Facilities and services. Public facilities and services, especially those with adopted levels 

of service, will be available, will provide adequate capacity to serve the proposed use 

consistent with capacity requirements. 

 

No public facilities are needed to serve the development.  There will be no demand for 
mass transit, school facilities, potable water, sanitary sewer, solid waste or parks.  
 
 
 
 

  



Last Updated: 06/21/18 
 

3. On-site circulation. Ingress to and egress from the site and its structures will be 

sufficient, particularly regarding vehicle and pedestrian safety and convenience, efficient 

traffic flow and control, on-site parking and loading, and emergency vehicle access. 

 

Ingress and Egress to and from the site will be from W. Bogia Road. No other access 
points are planned.  This ingress/egress point will be utilized by employees to 
construct, maintain, and operate the facility.  Following construction, the site will be 
monitored remotely and will not require onsite personnel for day to day operation.  
No increase in traffic will be generated by the project on a typical day.  This site will 
not be open to the general public.  
 
No pedestrian activity outside of employee activity will occur on-site.  

 
 

4. Nuisances and hazards. The scale, intensity, and operation of the use will not generate 

unreasonable noise, glare, dust, smoke, odor, vibration, electrical interference, or other 

nuisances or hazards for adjoining properties and other properties in the immediate 

area. 

No noise, glare, dust, smoke, odor, vibration, electrical interference or other 
nuisances will be generated as a result of this development. The photovoltaic solar 
panels proposed for installation at the site are designed with anti-reflective coating 
and are designed to absorb light rather than reflect it.    This site will be a passive 
generation facility.  No effects on the surrounding properties are anticipated.  

 
 

5. Solid waste. All on-site solid waste containers will be appropriately located for functional 

access, limited off-site visibility and minimal odor and other nuisance impacts. 

 

No solid waste containers will be located on site after construction is complete.   
 

 

6. Screening and buffering. Where not otherwise required by the LDC, screening and 
buffering will be provided if appropriate to the proposed use and site. 

 

Gulf Power intends to retain most existing vegetation at the perimeter of the project 
site within the associated buffer area to satisfy the screening and buffering 
requirements.   

 
 
 
 
 
 



Last Updated: 06/21/18 
 

7. Signs and lighting. All exterior signs and lights, whether attached or freestanding, will be 

compatible with adjoining properties and other properties in the immediate area, 

especially regarding glare and traffic safety. 

 

Exterior structure lighting will be restricted to the solar collector yard area and is only 
used when performing nighttime maintenance activities.  No lighting fixture will emit 
glare or spill lighting onto any parcel outside of the project boundary.  

 
8. Site characteristics. The size, shape, location and topography of the site appear adequate 

to accommodate the proposed use, including setbacks, intensity, bulk, height, open space 

and aesthetic considerations. 

 

Gulf Power has conducted extensive analysis to determine that this site meets the 
needs of the facility.    A typical 74.5 MW photovoltaic solar facility requires 
approximately 450 acres of cleared, flat land on which to construct the solar energy 
center.  This site provides adequate acreage to develop the facility.  

 
 

9. Use requirements. The proposed use complies with any additional conditional use 

requirements of the applicable zoning district, use, or other provisions of the LDC. 

 

Pursuant to Section 3-2.2(c)(5) of the Escambia County LDC, “power plants” (listed in 
part (b) are allowed as a conditional use. Section 3-2.2(e) of the LDC provides 
location criteria for conditional uses in the Agriculture zoning district. These include 
1) prime farmland; and 2) non-residential uses.  
 
One of the location criteria for prime farmland states that all new uses must be 
located so that farmland is not lost.  This site has been used for Silvicultural activities, 
which according to the LDC, is defined as “the management of forest establishment, 
growth, composition, health, and quality to product lumber, pulp wood, or other 
forest products”.  This site has not been used for the production of food or other 
products generally associated with farmland and agriculture uses. Therefore, this 
criterion is met as no farming activities exist on this site.   
 
The second location criterion that non-residential uses must be located to avoid 
nuisances and hazards is also met. For the same reasons mentioned in this 
application and the accompanying Land Use Compatibility Analysis, an emission-free, 
low-intensity use will not create any hazard or nuisance to surrounding uses.  

 
 
 
 
 



Last Updated: 06/21/18 

4. Please complete the following form (if applicable): Affidavit of Owner/Limited

Power of Attorney

AFFIDAVIT OF OWNER AND LIMITED POWER OF ATTORNEY 

{if applicable) 

As owner of the property located at 398 W. Bogia Road, McDavid , Florida, property 
reference number(s) portions of 21-4N-31-1101-0000-00; 16-4N-31-1000-0000-01; 22-4N-31-1000- 

0000-00; and 15-4N-31-1101-0000-00. I hereby designate for the 
sole purpose of completing this application and making a presentation to the Board of Adjustment on the 
above referenced property. This Limited Power of Attorney is granted on this 5th day of April the year of 
2019,  and is effective until the Board of Adjustment has rendered a decision on this request and any appeal 
period has expired. The owner reserves the right to rescind this Limited Power of Attorney at any time with 
a written, notarized notice to the Development Services Department. 

Agent Name: ____________________________ _ 

Email: ______________________________ _ 

Address: Phone: 
------------------ -----------

Signature of Property Owner 

1)Qnn,s J:>� y.�S-1') 
Printed Name of Property Owner Date 

STATE OF fl:l.a,ro,W\,D-- COUNTY OF SV\e.,h:)j , 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ ..,,.,) day of f}:pt'1 I
by J)oon\3 Du..Bo )&. 

Personally Known�R Produced Identification□. Type of Identification Produced: _______ _ 

Printed Name of Notary 

(Notary Seal) 

Allara Mills-Gutcher

allara@theplanningcollaborative.com

2311 Lee Street, Lynn Haven,  FL  32444 850.319.9180





Scott Lunsford, CFC    Escambia County Tax Collector

Notice of Ad Valorem and Non-Ad Valorem Assessments SCAN TO PAY ONLINE

facebook.com/ECTaxCollector twitter.com/escambiatcEscambiaTaxCollector.com

ACCOUNT NUMBER MILLAGE CODE ESCROW CODE PROPERTY REFERENCE NUMBER

EXEMPTIONS:PROPERTY ADDRESS:

DETACH HERE AND RETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT

RETAIN FOR YOUR RECORDS

Scott Lunsford, CFC
Escambia County Tax Collector

Payments in U.S. funds from a U.S. bank 

PAY ONLY ONE AMOUNT 
NOVEMBER 30, 2017

Make checks payable to: 

ACCOUNT NUMBER

PROPERTY ADDRESS

P.O. BOX 1312
PENSACOLA, FL 32591

AD VALOREM TAXES
TAXING AUTHORITY MILLAGE RATE ASSESSED VALUE EXEMPTION AMOUNT TAXES LEVIEDTAXABLE AMOUNT

NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS
TAXING AUTHORITY RATE AMOUNT

TOTAL MILLAGE      14.5731 AD VALOREM TAXES        106.12

NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS         125.33

COMBINED TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS      231.45Pay online at EscambiaTaxCollector.com
Payments must be in U.S. funds drawn from a U.S. bank

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Pay online at EscambiaTaxCollector.com

DO NOT FOLD, STAPLE, OR MUTILATE

AMOUNT IF PAID BY

AMOUNT IF PAID BY

AMOUNT IF PAID BY

AMOUNT IF PAID BY

AMOUNT IF PAID BY

ALL FRAC LESS NW1/4 OF NW1/4 TO MCCAWLEY
OR 6055 P 752/785 LESS MINERAL RIGHTS

RMS TIMBERLANDS LLC
5605 WOODBINE RD
PACE, FL    32571

RMS TIMBERLANDS LLC
5605 WOODBINE RD
PACE, FL    32571

6,602
6,602
6,602
6,602

$18.87

6,602

6,602

$111.42

COUNTY
PUBLIC SCHOOLS
  BY LOCAL BOARD

6,602

  BY STATE LAW
WATER MANAGEMENT

6,602

SHERIFF

6,602

M.S.T.U. LIBRARY

6,602

Paid

6,602
6,6020.3590

0.6850

REAL ESTATE

REAL ESTATE

0.0338

18.87

4.2000
2.1250

6.6165

06

FP   FIRE PROTECTION

$92.5514.0193

TAXES

TAXES

Paid By

Nov 30, 2018
0.00

Receipt #

154N311101000000742

RESOURCE MANAGEMENT SERVICE LLMARY C HUELSBECK

12-1220-000

12-1220-000

2018

2018

HIGHWAY 164 (OFF)

HIGHWAY 164 (OFF)

EEX-18-00335124

0

0

11/27/2018

If Paid By

0

Nov 30, 2018

0
0
0

43.68

Please Pay $0.00

14.03
27.73

0.22
4.52
2.37

$106.96









Escambia County Board of Adjustment Application – Conditional Use Request 

EXHIBIT A – Site Location 

W. Bogia Road

S.
 C

en
tu

ry
 B

lvd
.S. Pine Barren R

d.

Project Boundary

Allara Gutcher
Rectangle



Escambia County Board of Adjustment Application – Conditional Use Request 

EXHIBIT B – Zoning Map 

Agriculture

Con

Rural Residential

Rural
Residential

Project Boundary

Agriculture

S. Pine Barren R
d.

W. Bogia Rd.

S.
 C

en
tu

ry
 B

lvd
.

Allara Gutcher
Line

Allara Gutcher
Polygon

Allara Gutcher
Rectangle



Escambia County Board of Adjustment Application – Conditional Use Request 

EXHIBIT C – Future Land Use Map 

Agriculture

Agriculture

Rural Community

Project Boundary

W. Bogia Road

S. Pine Barren Rd.

S.
 C

en
tu

ry
 B

lvd
.

Allara Gutcher
Polygon

Allara Gutcher
Rectangle

















































Land Use Compatibility Analysis 
For a Solar Power Generation Facility to be located on W. Bogia Road, east of Century Blvd. 

In Escambia County, Florida 

known as Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center  

Conducted for: 

Gulf Power 

Prepared for: 

Escambia County Planning and Zoning Division 
Ph: 850.554.8210 

3363 West Park Place 
Pensacola, FL  32505 

Prepared by: 

The Planning Collaborative 
Allara Mills Gutcher, AICP 

Ph: 850.319.9180 
allara@theplanningcollaborative.com 

April 10, 2019 

mailto:allara@theplanningcollaborative.com


1 Land Use Compatibility Analysis – Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Purpose and Introduction…………………………………………….……………………………    2 

Project Description….………………..………….…………………………………………………    3 

Figure 1. Project Location Aerial Photograph…………..………………………………..   4 

General Project Location and Setting …………………………….………………………………   4 

Figure 2. Parcel ID Map……………………………………………………………….……   5 

Figure 3. Location of Adjacent Parcels Not Owned by RMS Timberland, LLC….……   6 

Table 1. Adjacent Parcels Not Owned by RMS Timberland and Their Classifications...   6 

Figure 4. Internal Views of Site ……….………….………………………………….........   8 

Applicable Policies and Regulations………………………………………………………..……  8 

Table 2. Zoning District Regulations Assigned to Subject Parcel and Parcels 
Contiguous to the Site …………………….………………………………………………...   10 

Analysis…….………………………………………………………………………………….……..    10 

Table 3. Agriculture Development Standards Comparison to Development Plan…....   11 

Findings and Conclusions…………………………………………………………………………   12 

EXHIBIT 1 – Certified Boundary Survey prepared by Bannerman Surveyors, Inc. 
EXHIBIT 2 – Site Plan prepared by Golder, dated January 24, 2019. 
EXHIBIT 3 – Escambia County Future Land Use Map. 
EXHIBIT 4 – Escambia County Zoning Map. 



2 Land Use Compatibility Analysis – Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 

PURPOSE AND INTRODUCTION 
This report analyzes the compatibility of a solar power generation facility proposed to be located 
on a portion of four adjacent parcels located approximately one mile west of Century Blvd. on the 
north side of W. Bogia Road near the community of McDavid, Florida.  As set forth below, the 
proposed facility will not, over time, adversely or negatively impact the surrounding existing uses.  
The proposed facility will provide clean, emissions-free, renewable energy  

In the development of this report, the following definition of compatibility set forth in §163.3164(9), 
Florida Statutes, was utilized: 

“Compatibility means a condition in which land uses or conditions can coexist in relative 
proximity to each other in a stable fashion over time such that no use or condition is unduly 
negatively impacted directly or indirectly by another use or condition.” 

The Escambia County Comprehensive Plan also provides a definition of “Incompatible/compatible 
development” in Chapter 3 Definitions.  Section 3.04 Definitions states as follows: 

“Incompatible development is new development proposed to be constructed next to existing 
development wherein the proximity of the two kinds of development would each diminish the 
usefulness of the other or would be detrimental to existing operations.  The incompatibility can 
arise from either land use or structure size and design. Compatible development is new 
development proposed to be constructed next to existing development in which the proximity 
of the two kinds of development would each complement or enhance the usefulness of the 
other.”  

Finally, the County’s Land Development Regulations Chapter 6, Definitions, Section 6-0.3 Terms 
Defined provides the following definition for “compatible: 

“Compatible. A condition in which land uses, activities or conditions can coexist in relative 
proximity to each other in a stable fashion over time such that no use, activity, or condition is 
unduly negatively impacted directly or indirectly by another use, activity, or condition.” 

As a note, the definition of “compatible” in Section 6-0.3 of the County’s Land Development 
Regulations is nearly identical to the definition of “compatibility” set forth in §163.3164(9), Florida 
Statutes.  

This analysis has considered the type of development proposed in comparison to the existing 
built environment as directed by Florida Statutes and the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan. 
Such factors of study included the surrounding uses, building setbacks, building height, and 
impact of the new use to the existing uses. 



3 Land Use Compatibility Analysis – Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 

The consultant, Allara Mills Gutcher, completed the following research in preparation of this 
report:  

• Review of the Escambia County Property Appraiser website data and maps.
• Review of the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan, 2030 (dated 6/2018).
• Review of the Escambia County Land Development Regulations dated August 2,

2018.
• Review of the Escambia County Future Land Use Map and Zoning Map as shown on

Escambia County’s web mapping service web page.1

• A visit to the site on October 23, 2018.
• A pre-application meeting with Andrew Holmer on November 16, 2018.
• Consultation with Gulf Power.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The applicant, Gulf Power Company (“Gulf Power”) proposes construction of a commercial 
photovoltaic solar power generation facility on approximately 639 acres of disturbed land which 
has previously been utilized for Silvicultural activities (See Figure 1).  The site is accessible via S. 
Century Blvd. (US HWY 29/SR 95), a rural developed principal arterial roadway2, and is 
addressed as 398 W. Bogia Road.  The site will be designed to preserve on-site wetlands, and 
will otherwise have minimal development impact to the site which will include approximately 
300,000 solar panels mounted on galvanized steel racks, gravel pathways, and a collector yard.  
All efforts will be made to preserve existing vegetation at the perimeter of the site that is needed 
to satisfy the buffering requirements of the Escambia County Land Development Code.   

The scale of the project will be that of a typical 74.5 megawatt facility.  The solar panels will be 
constructed to align with the greatest angle for energy absorption from the sun.  

There will be no noise, smoke, glare, emissions, dust, vibration, or odors emitted from this use. 
Lighting will be restricted to the solar collector yard area and is only used when performing 
nighttime maintenance activities.  The collector yard lighting be placed to avoid unnecessary light 
impacts to adjacent parcels.  All interior pathways will be intended only for staff and service 
vehicles to maintain the activities of the facility.    

1 http://maps2.roktech.net/escambia_gomaps4/?mapName=General  
2 Florida-Alabama Transportation Planning Organization Congestion Management Process Plan, June 2017, 
Appendix A Level of Service Tables, pg. 20.  

http://maps2.roktech.net/escambia_gomaps4/?mapName=General


4 Land Use Compatibility Analysis – Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 

Figure 1. Project Location Aerial Photograph 

       Source: Google Earth, October 2018. 

GENERAL PROJECT LOCATION AND SETTING 

The site will be a portion of four parent parcels located on the north side of W. Bogia Road west 
of Century Blvd. (US 29) in unincorporated Escambia County, 32568 (See Figure 2).  The subject 
parcel is approximately 639 acres, and is located within Sections 15, 16, 21, and 22 of Township 
4N, Range 31W.  The Escambia County Property Appraiser’s Reference Numbers are 21-4N-31-
1101-000-000, 22-4N-31-1000-000-000, 15-4N-31-1101-000-000, and 16-4N-31-1000-000-0013 
for the parent parcels.  A portion of each of the aforementioned parcel numbers are part of the 
development. The properties are currently disturbed parcels, which have been used for 
Silvicultural activities.   A site-specific survey indicates that there are some wetlands on the 
subject parcel which will be protected from development (See Exhibit 2).4  The existing use of the 
parcels are classified as “Improved Agriculture-Misc. Imprv.”, and “Timber 2.”5 

3 Escambia County Property Appraiser website, October 28, 2018.  
4 Site Plan, Golder, January 24, 2019. 
5 Escambia County Property Appraiser assigned Department of Revenue Tax Code, referenced October 29, 2018. 



5 Land Use Compatibility Analysis – Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 

Figure 2. Parcel ID Map 

The Escambia County geographic systems website does not locate this site within any AICUZ 
zone, an Airfield Installation Planning District, the Pensacola Regional Airport Overlay, or any 
Community Redevelopment Area or Scenic Highway Overlay.6  

Immediately surrounding the parcel are a variety of agricultural and residential uses.  Immediately 
east and adjacent to the subject parcel on W. Bogia Road are two parcels owned by Rays Chapel 
Baptist Church. The abutting parcel has a tax classification of “Non-Ag Acreage”. The second 
parcel immediately to the east of that has a tax classification of “Church”. The remaining parcels 
to the east, north, and west are owned by RMS Timberlands and are classified as “Timber 2”. 
Other lands to the northeast, west and south not owned by RMS Timberlands are primarily larger 
lot residential (See Figure 3 and Table 1). There are no platted subdivisions within a mile of any 
boundary of the subject project.7  The closest platted subdivision is in the McDavid community, 
and is approximately 1.2 miles northeast of the project boundary, and is referred to as 
“Campground Tract”.  

6 http://maps2.roktech.net/escambia_gomaps4/?mapName=General 
7 Ibid.  



6 Land Use Compatibility Analysis – Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 

Figure 3 below graphically represents those parcels immediately adjacent to the subject parcel 
which are not owned by RMS Timberland.  Table 1 describes each parcel’s existing use, and 
assigned zoning and Future Land Use categories.  

Figure 3. Location of Adjacent Parcels Not Owned by RMS Timberlands, LLC. 

Source: Escambia County Property Appraiser and Escambia County GIS 
(http://maps2.roktech.net/escambia_gomaps4/?mapName=General), October 2018 

Table 1. Adjacent Parcels Not Owned by RMS Timberland and Their Classifications 

Map 
Identifier Site Address Existing Land 

Use Zoning District Future Land Use Acres 
+/- 

A 890 W. Bogia 
Road 

Improv. 
Agriculture 
Residential 

Agriculture Agriculture 46.5 

B 800 W. Bogia 
Road 

Vacant 
Residential Agriculture Agriculture 5 

C 860 W. Bogia 
Road 

Single Family 
Residential Agriculture Agriculture 4.98 



7 Land Use Compatibility Analysis – Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 

Map 
Identifier Site Address Existing Land 

Use Zoning District Future Land Use Acres 
+/- 

D 840 W. Bogia 
Road Non-Ag Acreage Agriculture Agriculture 20 

E (part of) 890 W. 
Bogia Road 

Improv. 
Agriculture 
Residential 

Agriculture Agriculture 2.75 

F 800 W. Bogia 
Road Mobile Home Agriculture Agriculture 0.96 

G 770 W. Bogia 
Road 

Single Family 
Residential Agriculture Agriculture 12.29 

H 740 W. Bogia 
Road 

Single Family 
Residential Agriculture Agriculture 2.91 

I 700 blk. W. 
Bogia Road 

Vacant 
Residential Agriculture Agriculture 4.77 

J 730 W. Bogia 
Road 

Single Family 
Residential Agriculture Agriculture 1.85 

K 720 W. Bogia 
Road 

Improv. 
Agricultural-
Residential 

Agriculture Agriculture 17.42 

L 670 W. Bogia 
Road 

Single Family 
Residential Agriculture Agriculture 9.54 

M (none) Non-Ag-Acreage Agriculture Agriculture 19.4 

N 560 W. Bogia 
Road 

Single Family 
Residential Agriculture Agriculture 10 

O 140 W. Bogia 
Road 

Non-Ag Acreage 
and Church Agriculture Rural Community 

22.5 
and 8.4 

(2 
parcels

) 

P 350 Cotton 
Creek Road 

Improv. 
Agricultural-
Residential 

Agriculture Agriculture 50 

Q 17256 Goose 
Creek Trail 

Improv. 
Agricultural-
Residential 

Agriculture Agriculture 31.85 

R HWY 29 Timber 2 Agriculture Agriculture 285.37 
Source: Escambia County Property Appraiser and Escambia County GIS (https://myescambia.com/our-
services/development-services/gis), October 2018  

Figure 4 below consists of photographs of the site from within the project boundary that were 
taken in October 2018.  The existing use shows disturbed lands and planted pines.  Additionally, 
there is an existing transmission line that runs northwest/southeast and bisects the project 
boundary.  

https://myescambia.com/our-services/development-services/gis
https://myescambia.com/our-services/development-services/gis


8 Land Use Compatibility Analysis – Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 

Figure 4. Internal Views of Site. 

APPLICABLE POLICIES AND REGULATIONS 

The project boundary is currently designated with two Future Land Use categories of Agriculture 
and Rural Community.  The portion of Rural Community lies in the northeast quadrant, and is 
approximately 30 acres (See Exhibit 3).  

The zoning district assigned to all parcels within the boundary of the project is Agriculture (See 
Exhibit 4).  Consequently, no Future Land Use Map amendment or zoning change is required to 
allow the proposed development.  Descriptions of the Future Land Use categories and zoning 
district are provided here: 



9 Land Use Compatibility Analysis – Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 

Future Land Use Category: Agriculture (AG)8 

General Description of the AG Future Land Use category: “Intended for a mix of industrial 
development and ancillary office and commercial uses that are deemed to be compatible 
with adjacent or nearby properties.  Industrial areas shall facilitate continued industrial 
operations within the County and provide jobs and employment security for present and 
future residents.” 

Industrial Range of Allowable Uses: The Comprehensive Plan describes the allowable uses 
as a range.  These include: “Light to intensive industrial, ancillary retail and office.  No new 
residential development is allowed.”   The maximum intensity for this category is a floor area 
ratio of 1.0. No residential development is allowed within this category.  

Future Land Use Category: Rural Community (RC)9 

General Description of the RC Future Land Use category: “Intended to recognize existing 
residential development and neighborhood serving nonresidential activity through a 
compact development pattern that serves the rural and agricultural areas of Escambia 
County.”  

The range of uses allowable in the Rural Community category include “agriculture, 
residential, recreational facilities, public and civic, compact traditional neighborhood 
supportive commercial.” 

Zoning Designation: Agriculture10 

The Agriculture zoning district is established to designate “appropriate areas for the routine 
agricultural production of plants and animals, and such related uses as silviculture and 
aquaculture.” Two of the primary intents of this district are to avoid the division of these 
lands into smaller parcels, and to retain sufficient amount of land for farming.  This category 
supports residential, limited retail sales and services (as related to agriculture production 
activities), certain public and civic uses, and agriculture uses.  Conditional uses within this 
district include group homes, medical clinics, and specifically power plants.11   

The development standards for a parcel zoned Agriculture are shown in Table 2. 

8 Escambia County Comprehensive Plan 2030 dated August 2018, Policy FLU 1.3.1. 
9 Escambia County Comprehensive Plan 2030 dated August 2018, Policy 1.3.1 
10 Escambia County Land Development Code Section 3-2.2 
11 Escambia County Land Development Code Section 3-2.2(c)(3) 



10 Land Use Compatibility Analysis – Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 

Table 2. Zoning District Regulations Assigned to Subject Parcel and Parcels Contiguous 
to the Site12 

Criteria 
Zoning Designation 

Agriculture 

Location Subject Parcel, and all adjacent parcels 

Max Density Maximum 1 dwelling unit per 20 acres 

FAR Maximum 0.25 for all uses 

Height No maximum 

Lot Area No minimum 

Lot Width Minimum of 100 feet at the street ROW 

Lot Coverage Minimum pervious of 30 percent 

Structure Setbacks 

  Front and Rear 40 feet 

  Sides 
5 feet or 10% of the lot width at the 
street ROW, whichever is greater, but 
not required to exceed 15 feet. 

  Corner Lots As determined by a front and side 
setback requirement. 

ANALYSIS 

As depicted in Table 3 below, the standards of the Agriculture zoning district are far greater in 
intensity than the actual plan for development. There are no structures to account for a floor area 
ratio (“FAR”). The maximum amount allowed is 0.25 FAR in the Agriculture zoning district. 
Additionally, there will not be any habitable buildings to account for a height comparison. The 
solar panel structures will have a height of approximately eight (8) feet.   

12 Escambia County Land Development Code Section 3-2.2(d) 



11 Land Use Compatibility Analysis – Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 

Table 3. Agriculture Development Standards Comparison to Development Plan 

Standard LDC Requirement Development Plan 

Density 1 d/u per 20 acres None 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) Max 0.25 None 

Structure Height Max 150 feet above grade 7 - 9 feet for the solar panels 

Lot Area No minimum +/- 639 acres 

Lot Width Minimum of 100 feet Approximately 2,800 feet at 
W. Bogia Road

Lot Coverage 
Minimum pervious 30% (70% 
max semi-impervious and 
impervious) for all uses 

Pervious surface will be 
approximately 97%. 
Impervious/semi-impervious 
surface will be 
approximately 3%. 

Structure Setbacks 

Front and Rear: 40 feet min. 

There will be no habitable 
structures on site.  All solar 
panel arrays will be setback 
as required.  

Side: 15 feet minimum 

There will be no habitable 
structures on site. All solar 
arrays will be setback as 
required.  

The County’s Land Development Regulations offer guidance when analyzing compatibility when 
a new use is introduced.  Chapter 3, Zoning Regulations, Section 3-1.6 “Compatibility,” contains 
criteria which describe a way in which Escambia County may consider whether or not a use is a 
suitable location in relation to existing and established uses.  Section 3-1.6(b) introduces criteria 
to allow for residential and non-residential uses to be located in close proximity to each other.   

Section 3-1.6(b) mentions location criteria may that be considered within some zoning districts to 
promote compatibility between uses, and can include distances of some uses to intersections, 
and consideration of the classification of the roadway.  More specifically:    

Part 1) speaks to an intersection distance requirement for a rezoning application.  This 
criterion does not apply to this request as there is no rezoning sought.  

Part 2) is directed at the consideration of a local street as a designated collector roadway.  
The applicant is not seeking the designation of a local street as a collector, so this criterion is 
also met.  



12 Land Use Compatibility Analysis – Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 

Section 3-1.6(c) of the County’s Land Development Regulations states that other compatibility 
measures may be required such as landscaping, buffering, and screening to protect lower 
intensity uses from non-residential uses. Since the solar power generation facility will be a passive 
use, with no outward appearance or any standard nuisance factors, this criterion is met through 
Escambia County regulatory standards such as buffers which will be incorporated into the 
development plan.   

The compatibility measurement is furthered by Escambia County specific to the zoning district. 
Those criteria are found within each Section of the LDC that addresses each specific district.  For 
the Agriculture zoning district, Section 3-2.2(e) of the LDC includes location criteria for new non-
residential uses within the Agriculture zoning district.  These include: 

1. The requirement to limit new uses that will not contribute to the loss of prime farmland.
This criterion is met as the use of the property is a low-impact development that will not
remove the land from future farming activities. Solar panel arrays can be easily removed
at the end of the project lifecycle and the land can be returned to previous condition and
use.

2. The requirement that all non-residential uses are to be located to avoid nuisance potential
to surrounding residential uses.  Due to the fact that solar generation facilities do not create
noise, smoke, dust, odor, vibration, electrical interference, glare, additional traffic, or other
nuisances, this criterion is met. As mentioned, solar power generation facilities are
passive in nature, absorbing the sun’s rays to create electrical energy and have no to very
low impact to surrounding uses.

Additionally, Section 2-2.3 of Chapter 2, Article 2 of the Design Standards Manual incorporated 
in the County’s Land Development Regulations states “the buffer shall protect the lower intensity 
use from the higher intensity use and provide an aesthetically attractive barrier between the uses.” 
All established vegetation that is within the required buffer area will remain to retain existing 
vegetation and satisfy the vegetative buffer requirements. Any required newly installed buffers 
will provide a natural barrier between uses and will be installed as required by the County’s 
adopted regulations.  

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

The proposed development of a +/- 639 acre solar power generation facility located at 398 W. 
Bogia Rod in unincorporated Escambia County will be compatible with the existing surrounding 
development.  The proposed facility will not result in any land use conflicts with the adjacent uses, 
but rather exist in close proximity with no adverse impact.  No impacts will be generated such as 
noise, smoke, exhaust, emissions, dust, adverse lighting, vibrations, traffic generation, or odors 
that would be detrimental to the existing surrounding uses or would otherwise disturb the quiet 
enjoyment of residents in the vicinity.  



13 Land Use Compatibility Analysis – Gulf Power Cotton Creek Solar Energy Center 

The proposed setbacks will meet the minimum requirements of the AG zoning district and are 
incorporated into the plan for development.  The proposed facility is a low-intensity development, 
is passive in nature, and will not conflict with existing uses.  The height of the arrays will be 
between seven and nine feet, and will be slightly visible from the County right-of-way on W. Bogia 
Road. All location requirements are met that are particular to the Agriculture zoning district and 
no variance will be sought.  

The proposed solar power generation facility is consistent with the Goals, Objectives, and Policies 
of the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan and complies with the adopted requirements of the 
County’s Land Development Code.  The development of this facility will not create a condition 
that will negatively or adversely impact surrounding uses over time.  



�> 
::::> 
Cl) 
>-
a::

'5 
z
::::> 
0
m 

LL 
0 
D... 
<( 
� 

i� 
j:: (/) -0z l-
o 1-- o> :z 

H.l..l::fON 1/fJ.. I I I I I Ll\1 r�)-

� �"' �wO
o

_ 
OCL zc 
c:::,_,� z r o � zcr:: F 2 WO � w �r r � w 2w ll::'.: 0W ll::'.: ll::'.:r > � o z� o �o � fficr::� 

w o... Zw r rz < >� w 0 � z� w �w o 0 0(f)z zwr � 5� � ��ww oz 0....1w 
�2< Cc:: WO � �<io <C� �I�<C� ,o� �root- w�wu�0t- O< 0�wz m 

��LL. 1.&.. 1.&..1.&..�z�Uo�L&..1.&..�� er::� zo�Q0 z::r:,o�o<COOwW��w�oo0ozr <�r�w 
QV> wr w .Qrr°'"�ocV> wrrr zO>-ooc_,V> w V> t-ZO wr� u��wzr FZet:::ll::'.:� 1.&..Z 
o�zicr::o...o��zz�L&..wz��rwce�oo�u�ow 
wo�Qr-w....1oooo�wowooozro::r:Iw�zocu 

zlW�O'.'.ll::'.:WOL&..D...�U�<OC�UD...�Z��UUOCc(���
0 
F 
C 

5w"' m m C 

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 

0 
. e--= WUc..5 -� c/2 • {] 

u � · · ·zZ�� • · '{C · :,; 
w ,e--=����oo�w� ��� r�w �wro ooroc�wo�o...�u��oc��o...�z �uuu� ..... ��� 

CL C 
CL u 
<( (.) ::, 

3co . <O ::, 0 co ..,_ :i: "'i "' 

t:: a,:i:':!:l "_,>-
;;:0 >- . 

�� >-� "' w • .., . > (/) (/) lQ"' "' vs� c,O
z>-w _ w "> "'> Z(t'. .., "' --, o:, s (/) (/) 

0 z r Wz ,-c "'"" 
w:::, . :,; 

(/) "' Z(t'. 
w o w oz ::, z Oz z "'<( • <(

z a, §iw 
oo 0 O 

I 
"' w uw 
-Q_ ' CL
' ::,; ... ,. "'<( ?< ;:s '-->-
"'(/) ... (/) 

0 I!) 

$ 
� • , ,

ciw>-0 
z 

acw V) 
V) "'!!2 w-' " z o"' o w .., 

"'F' I 
zO 
0 

V) 
>-
w 

""V) > 
w "' . -' .., Nz (/) :::-:o " 

z. I z
iE0"' 

FO 0 c->- "' 0 (/) ':!:l z
w .., (() 0 0--w --1.&.. f5 CL 
>::::;:; w . 
-<( < t=b Cl �� � w 

(/) >-
zO 

ll::'.:� oz 
oj � w 
_, V) 
OU '-'§: er::.= � a::: t- w t-wZ<( f!!:c 0....1 xr 0� wo 
<,I • 

V) 
V) w-'z .., 

>-
� "' w
.., z 

::J V) " "' z w 
iE 3' 0 .., CL 0 
0 0 <( z w 
6 ___ I-
I.&...--- Cc:: - w 
z. > 0 0 ::,; ci :r:w ,-. >- §, '-'o 
5 z w -' uw 0 ('.) !!2 CL 

z" 
Fffi "' w 
!!2 :,: 3' 
x>- 0 
wo CL 
■ )::( 

w 

I 

w 
..J 
< 00 
0 ... 
C/J 

0 g - N ::c 
Q.
< 0 cc 
C,

r 
z C "' 0>-:,: 
w "' 
� 

§ 

- �

+ 

z� �(/) 

� 
II) 

.
l 9(.q l>1.:i

R O S -' 

.., 
--

1-8 
w"" 
w 
IL g_ 
z.c 
-o

-.!: 
-

_/ 

>";II 

I 

j 
l 

J 
I 

:-'''1<-

1 
' ' ,.' \ 

�' 
('I) a:: . 
!.
� 
z 

� 
UJ 

+!)·!! +! +!(.)
1

(.) u (.)
<( <( <( <( 
0 'If) t,t') O'l 
..-1co o o
.,; 1..: ,-: ..:

I'- "1 N "' 

"'I"' - N ..- ..... c-., N 
z;z :z :z 
0,00 0 
..... I- I- 1-
u: o u o WWW LaJ 
C/) : (/) V) V) 

,,·:

�� 
oz 
-o 

ii 

ILi • 
en 
0-H 

�'X! oC'II giv 
!,'I z

�:Ii . .... 
ILi .... • 
• 

.-IN 

gi-t1 &� • iw, (I') .___ .,(l) • UJ ---,,, 
LOCO 

�
:Ii�..... 
C'li ""'

,:t ,. 
.-I� 

ILi • 
-Hen ..... IIJ• C'li15 9.10 AC.±

�II) 

"- >-0-' ,. w>-
o�:g0: Ul CL

!z (l) ILi (I') 

Ii 
Ei (!J 
(!J 

M. tt,, t,t.o90s
,1"t"t6€t 

- }"

�� 
a, 

(_ -' _,··---�-�fg{f;,°
ON ® 

'F,L "806---
3.0 l,9Z. lON 

N °' 

1--
--t-,..�O

a:i � 
�f.,. 

I��

ILi • 

ILi • 
�:Ii w st CC! • -H"<t en .-t. 
0 IX) � O> "N 

.-I a, 
('I) gi z 
� (I') 

"<t-H('II • • II) 
�c,;�1
0 0) --:-a, 

raN 

s::-i" 
�� 

.... 0 (j 

(i) ,., ,? 
ILi • 
0-H 
LD· 
. 0 (l) • ___,
(1')(0- I 
0 .... 

�"<t 

w 
.. ·11: 

!iJ sf 
{Jg:; 

�Jg�I:! "'" 

a��
'§� �e 

0.. /J-:<:� 
� 

{! 

r�d-.

+I
0
<( 
U) 
OCI -
r--

<»-H (I') • • a,
O ·  
,:t..-1 o ID
CO"<t
.... z 

ILi • 

. 
"-i;

N-
� 

q, 

�>« w 
I- :,: U) 1-
w 1,.,

�� 
0 <3 
bl o
=>o 
w>>>
<( :r:Io_ 
w« "� 

0 .r 
WO V) IO' o_ w 
>z
Co ,,,_ ru> 
08 r"' 
w O... �
V) :r: wZc,<t:
�IO 
0u,W 
o��>- m -<(•"-
�· _J 0
D_<(w ::soz
<( ii:: ::::::isc o ae: (/)_JWL,_""w z 
I'-'-W 

� 

..-1 :Ii • ,:tID • 
g)C'II

"'b 
�o

" "' N 
,ti OJ N "' --"' 
vi � 
ro 
(.) ...,"' "' 0 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
l(Ot-0 

I ,ti;,

. 
�;<tN:;;
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

V) 

f-

' 
� 
,if 
' 

z 0 (t'.0
�;g�5 

• :,: 0: (.> r lei 

w 
z-1--"•

z4S 
o�z::.

�, 
= "1'"Z ...-- WLLW 

::r:uoz 
e>>- -

z;:zw -' 

i= - w 
ww....1+10 
5<:Q;;<(ioz 
wo...z...:� 

::::::i ,-.. 
C,),,......Ld 

1--!:t! 
z C..1 ';':

wUl� 
OW ' 

��� 
55 !:: ., LU 

w o 
e::: a:, it 

1.&...0W 
'-'coc,·T"f 

o m 
�...__,,�to:...

oocr:: 
� .· .. ..., 

,5,=c 
!QZZ, ,� en 

_.w 
xoc.1,QO 
w::!:9='.:D (0 

M. l"t,, tt: ::::JI .-j
6€"€f:i9°s 

21.09 AC.± 

-- -- - - ,81:"0llo---

CJ 
� I 
g/ t::' 
�I 
\ 

,e,·g,gz 
- - -- --

M.,O L.9Z.l0S 

-q-
+!j '--
� 

�I w z 
en 
U> 
w 

�a:: 
� 
...I < 
�I :1 

' 

0 
w C 
>- 0 
-<( O' 

���Xu5<( 0 "' °'>->CL (I) CL <( "< w O 

-H
0
<(.., 
0 
r---.., 
U) 

i� -s-,,s>
o w OJ ' I� 

- - -- -- -- - -

-H
u 
<( 
r---
0 
a, "''° 
w 
C!> 
<( w "' 
(.)
<( 
_J 

;'.:': 
0 I-

ILi• 
.... -H 
ID• • a,N• 
Nr--
ogj
<O z 

ILi • .... _
.-I CW) 
ioui 
No 
�(I') 
� 

ILi 

"" ·- 0(/) . w ... 
bt z "' 

0 U) _, " 

• -HN. 
N(I') 
iwlcwj 

;� z 

:Ii 
.-I 

i 
ILi 
• 

� 

I 
I 
I 

)-. 
,ti "' "' N 

.-,,·g,� -3.00.0l.LON 

! -� '"v
0 

[· _,$-... ,p"" 
l#!f<..� o�
1' 0 

� 
� V 

��<::,: '!!-'J; 

ff� <!<d

-<.

, 
r,O -<. ,i;'> 

�«,� "-'�
<-"'" 

<fJ <c,._s 

' �<)
'"v 

�r::, 

-st'--
� 

;;;z

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

J 
��oz 

ii 

(.9L"OLZ<:;) "SHO 98"6L 'S3lON 07'> sn
,9L"OLZ<; M.,O L,91:,lOS 

.s-i:·stoc: M.01.ec:. tos

a, ... I O 
, . X V = 

I,.__ "B� 
c,:,;z 

z w 
F ""' u a 

' 
!::2Zc:.'. xO m w '-'-

,8£"s£9Z 

� • 
[e;:._• O> ,� �col I

.,! 

\ 

Ii 

\} 

), l

!j'I
·I
l.1

u�Z z O w u '<'
� �
1m
��
col='z�
F .  V) z -o GS :,;

I 

I 
I 

IJ------- �-. 1}
�� 

1! 
I 
I� N 

j� 
I 
I 

-q
'--� 

w 
V) ; :

C,Q\ ,,-a,ru, ...OI{)
� '° ' If) (") l{)--� ru MO lf') 0-
::::, OO(Uot-,.. r-,. 0 :!s:i-::::8v:i 

II II II II II 

o:1 °' <l �u �

I'·.,�'"'
I� 

1o. 11 A 
,= 4 '?<- I;;, �'Q'G, f i\7t_ I� 

<a"-;- •,j o�� 1•·�. f', �-o 'l I 
I

� ·-4"b'ol. 

·4�

-�
::;., 

�i-1J,:-,►�- 011. .� 14 
I ".sf ij) 

� . : '3 _ O 0 
/ 

4 

;
z
;:!: ------

! ro:-""L()l(")CO� '° ru co ruoM - ... ::I ...0" \000 
CJ ��;:e�� 

II II 11 11 II 

a:::l (l!'. <1 ...J u B

,,/· 

,0t"0J.c:t · 3.00,0lo t0N 

I ,, 

�{! ...r ,Zl"LZ£l 3.,00,0l.lON -. . -

N .u·an '3.,00,01.wN 

�I 
�I z 

i 
I 

z
0

i 

IO 
,..: �0 

.\'. 
.ff,✓ 1--
"')J 

;� -: 00 z 
is"' 
= z ..., 0 " ::a 
�o (l)z - o GS u

"-0 
(/) w>-u 
zZ <( w 

z�::a 0w _,"'0 

t r= 
;,- :i Cl) 

c,Oo 
z::EW
�(_)�� U1Zct:0 XOrw wu�a::: 

I 
1� 
I� 

N -q
'-.. L.. '--� o � 

z ;;; 
V)

(/) w >-u 
zZ 
<( w 

z�
::,; "' w _, "'0 

N "'<I" 

'-- L.. '--� � 

V) I 
I 
I 

- �z 

I 

o w 
z "' .., 0 

0 

0� 

I
Z

o
_ 

oc-

6 0 

' . 

_>-

..-z 

-�

. 0 

• • 

N c,:::, 

I ;,,
z 

-: z 

O��
IIJ•

�

N 
/..

-
�ZQ 

z z 

... -

- .w 
0-

. xo 

>-U,c 

- WU 

wuw 

• -

0 
;;; 
V) 

z. 
:z",CCO � 

lL�CQQ ::::i: '.:-<:'.tO
O..., :E O::c..i!:!2 r<1 

a::,..rc.qz. 0(/)r 
U1 ...., C.::qz: O . ...J z z..,.CI> u::;:a:::w 

.a:::ZUJ
�

"' c., ::io :::;; 

000 ,. 2 ;,!w� .us=.-. i= �<
C!:r:@25���0... a. (I) (I.) a:: 0 � � t;j �

u 
0 "' 

·i'/0
·� z 
0 

l.�:�' ' 
1'1' !: 
I 

��,.__· 
�\ 
W·' 
NJ 

1,! 
�i 0� 
�I! �� z 

� 

g 
� 

}t 
-i] 
i1 

----o;-

>z o:w 
.... � "'w 
ocn CL-<(w
L,_ o Wz 
"'::J

-1- - - -- -- - - -- --

\it,; 
.srn� 

I �'" 
� � 

.c:e·e-i:oi, 3 8T 

ft(" 
-s • •• ss.OON

,Le·a»1
0�{"-

' .o,·,,,,; 

':'· 

• (.OB"66Z<;) "SHO

_ _ ,88"8££1 ®) 
Ti 

JOB NUMBER M17-O65729 
DRAWN 
COUNTY 
SCALE 
DATE 

BY I A. MATHIS 
ST A TE I ESC,';MBIA/FLORIDA

1 "=400' 

11-01-17

<I 
-1-11�' 

REVISIONS 

,1 
I

I/i
I 
! 

!, 

3.,8 L,<;<;.OON 
rn·oe :s3lON 01� sn

Ii
.� 

I 
'j' 

'OLDEST SURVEYING FIRM IN JACKSON COUNTY. FLORIDA" 

"-0 c:, 
(/) w � 
>- "'z 
z"'w C <( "
z "' 

::a O w 
w�!:!S 
<>:03' 

BANNERMAN SURVEYORS, INC. 
4997 f--'IGHWAY 90 · MARIANNA. FLORIDA· 32448 

PHDNE (850) 526 · 4450 · FAX (850) 526 - 4462 · E-mail: bsi9520I2<0 yal100.co111 - www.banncrmansurveyorsinc.com 

licensed in: 

FLORIDA 

AflD 
COLORADO 

® 'tl 

\( ' ,� 

� .. ,.
, I 

PROJECT 

,st.'\i 

"' 

f;f 

-·''--'·'- -= 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN O.R. BOOK 6055, PAGE 752: 

COMMENCE at on existing concrete monument with aluminum disk stamped RLS 3578 in 
pavement marking the Southwest comer of Section 21, Township 4 North, Range 31 West, 
Escambia County, Florida and call this the POINT OF COMMENCEMENT; thence North OD 
degrees 55 minutes 18 seconds East along the Westerly line of said section a distance of 
1338.88 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with an aluminum cap stamped Bannerman Surveyors, 
Inc. (LB 5106) set marking the Northwest corner of the South half of the Southwest quarter 
of said section and call this the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continue North 00 degrees 
55 minutes 18 seconds East along said Westerly line a distance of 4016.62 feet to a 5/8 
inch iron rod with an aluminum cap stomped Bannerman Surveyors, Inc. {LB 5106) set 
marking the Northwest corner of said section; thence leaving said section line South 87 
degrees 44 minutes 09 seconds East along the Northerly line of said section a distance of 
2022.1 feet, more or less, to the approximate center of a creek that branches off of Cotton 
Creek; thence meander along the approximate center of said creek and the approximate 
center of Catton Creek into Section 16 the following legs; thence North 34 degrees 33 
minutes 22 seconds East a distance of 123.3 feet, more or less; thence North 51 degrees 25 
minutes 17 seconds East a distance of 306.3 feet, more or less; thence North 60 degrees 22 
minutes 57 seconds East a distance of 397.9 feet, more or less; thence North 33 degrees 11 
minutes 43 seconds East a distance of 381.0 feet, more or less; thence North 41 degrees 35 
minutes 12 seconds East a distance of 432.4 feet, more or less; thence North 78 degrees 40 
minutes 39 seconds East a distance of 451.8 feet, more or less; thence North 86 degrees 12 
minutes 25 seconds East a distance of 485.2 feet, more or less; thence South 65 degrees 
39 minutes 50 · seconds East a distance of 476.0 feet, more or less; thence South 63 
degrees 18 minutes 24 seconds East a distance of 299.5 feet, more or less; thence South 
57 degrees 31 minutes 11 seconds East a distance of 338.9 feet, more or less; thence North 
81 degrees 44 minutes 34 seconds East a distance of 289.6 feet, more or less, into 
Fractional Section 15 to a point (point being North 02 degrees 53 minutes 56 seconds East a 
distance of 913.0 feet, more or less, from the Southwest corner of said section); thence 
South 64 degrees 59 minutes 38 seconds East a distance of 198.3 feet, more or less; 
thence South 39 degrees 14 minutes 08 seconds East a distance of 192.4 feet, more or 
less; thence North 85 degrees 00 minutes 49 seconds East a distance of 162.8 feet, more or 
less; thence North 89 degrees 33 minutes 09 seconds East a distance of 42.8 feet, more or 
less, to the intersection of the approximate center of Cotton Creek and the Easterly line of 
Fractional Section 15; thence leaving the approximate center of said creek South 06 
degrees 44 minutes 41 seconds West along the Easterly fine of said section a distance of 
142. 7 feet, more or less. to a 5/8 inch iron rod with an aluminum cap stamped Bannerman
Surveyors, Inc. (LB 5106) set; thence continue South 06 degrees 44 minutes 41 seconds
West along said line and the Easterly line of Fractional Section 22 a distance of 1391.11 feet
to an existing 1 inch iron pipe with a 40d nail in center; thence continue South 06 degrees
44 minutes 41 seconds West along the Easterly line of Fractional Section 22 a distance of
1i113a..J.91 ff�t to an existing old concrete monument (broken) with an iron rod in center;
thence South 85 degrees 05 minutes 01 seconds East along the Southerly line of
Government Grant 39 a distance of 160.94 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with an aluminum
cap stamped Bannermcn Surveyors, Inc. (LB 5106) set at the intersection of said line end
an extension of the Easterly side of a troil rood; thence South 30 degrees 29 minutes 20
seconds West along the Ecsterly side of a trail road a distance of 732.25 feet to a point;
thence South 41 degrees 17 minutes 26 seconds West along the Easterly side of a trail rocd
o distance of 145.57 feet to an existing 4 inch by 4 inch concrete· monument (broken)
loccted on the Easterly line of Section 21; thence South 01 degrees 26 minutes 10 seconds 
West along said line a distance of 2015.15 feet to c 5/8 inch iron rod with an aluminum cap 
stomped Bannerman Surveyors, Inc. (LB 5106) set on the Northerly right of way of State 
Road S-191-A (Bogie Road) (100.00' R/W. paved road); thence North 78 degrees 48 
minutes 26 seconds West along said right of way a distance of 696.97 feet to a 5/8 inch iron 
rod with an aluminum cap stamped Bannerman Surveyors, Inc. (LB 5106) set at the P.C. 
{point of curvature) of a curve; thence Southwesterly along a curve being concave towards 
the left having a radius of 1482.69 feet; a delta angle of 42 degrees 31 minutes 29 
seconds; an arc length clang said curve of 1100.45 reel (chord bearing South 79 degrees 55 
minutes 49 seconds West, a chord distance of 1075.36 feet) to a 5/8 inch iron rod with an 
aluminum cap stomped Bannermcn Surveyors, Inc. (LB 5106) set at the P.T. {Point of 
Tangency) of said curve; thence South 58 degrees 40 minutes 04 seconds West along said 
right of way a distance of 224.87 feet to c 5/8 inch iron rod with cluminum cap stamped 
Bannerman Surveyors, lnc.(LB 5106) set at the P.C. (Point of Curvature) of a curve: thence 
Southwesterly clang a curve being conccve towards the right having a radius of 1860.08 
feet; a delta angle of 23 degrees 36 minutes 10 seconds; an arc length along said curve of 
766.25 feet (chord becring South 70 degrees 28 minutes 09 seconds West, a chord distance 
of'..760.�5 feet) to a 5/8 inch iron ;:rod with :cluminum cap stamped Bannerman _Surveyors, 
Inc. (LB 5106) ·set-·at 'the- intersectio_n· of said right of way and the Ecsterly ·Hne'of the South 
Half of the Southwest Qucrter of soi� Section; thence North 01 degrees 10 minutes 00 
seconds East along the Easterly line ;of said cliquot part a distcnce of 1270.10 feet to a 5/8 
inch iron rod with aluminum ccp stomped Bannerman Surveyors, Inc. (LB 5106) set, thence 
North 88 degrees 25 minutes 41 seconds West along the Northerly line of said cliquot pert a 
distance of 2647.57 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

The project is subject to a 50 foot wide powerline easement to Powersouth Energy 
Cooperative beginning near the Northwest corner of Section 21 and crosses diagonclly 
towards the Southeast corner of scid Section. 

This parcel contains 639.19 acres, more or less, and is located in the Southerly portion of 
frcctional 15, South Half of Section 16, Section 21, and the Northerly portion of fractional 
Section 22, Township 4 North, Range 31 West. Escambia County, Florido. 

This is a newly created description. 

SURVEYOR'S NOTES 

This survey is certified to 53 Land Investments, LLC; RMS Timberlands, LLC; First American 
Htfe' l'nsurcmce Company and Chicago Title Insurance Agency. Inc. 

1) This is a boundary survey. Existing monumen tation was held for the boundary where located 
The centerline of Bogia f?oad was tied per DOT Right of Way Map Section 48502-2601 and 
was held for the Southerly line of Parcel. The Easterly line of Section 21 was calculated per 
US GLO Notes. 

2) The bearings are based on the centerline of State Road S-191-A from P. T. Sta. 548+15.33
to P.C. Sta. 550+40.20 being N58'40'04"£.

3) The last day of field work was November 01, 20f7

4) Elevations are not appficabfe for this project. 

5) No underground installations or improvements or above ground iinprovements have been
located other than those shown. 

6. Coordinates are based on RTK based off of Fforida High Precession Network, side shots
are by redundant measurements using a one-second ropcon total station. 

7) I have reviewed the First American Titfe Insurance Company and Chicago Title Insurance 
Agency. Inc. title insurance commitment numbered 40450, with an effective date of June
6, 20f7 at 6:00 AM and all encumbrances,, except liens, identified in Schedule B, Section
II of the title 1flslirance commitment have been shown or noted on the survey. 

B) Not vafid without the signature and raised seal of a Florida Licensed Surveyor and
Mapper. 

9} I hereby certify that the survey shown hereon was made in accordance to the Minimum
Technical Standards set forth by the Florido Boord of Professional Land Surveyors in
Chapter 5J-17 FAC pursuant to Section 472.027 Florida Statutes.

\ I ( t I I /f, 1 
,,.,,( I' ''(;:·,. 

I\ . r · . \ (• } 1 ', 
' 

. (. \' '
. ,

\
' ' I ' ! ' '•.\(! ·, • 

··/,\ ',' 
,, 1((/ 

' .\.·,." ,' '' ,i;:(, 

� 

43!;,...t.4,� .. r� .. ·t:· ��( v� � . \;· 
ri; ; i� �-':• r r �-r :
;- "; < r 1., i 

""""'· -... ....... ...,.,,

BANNERMAN SURVEYORS, INC. 
FL Cert_ No. LB51O6 

Robert A. Bannerman, PSM 
FL Cert. No. 3214 

CLIENT SHEET TITLE 

(\; 'c (fc r . , 
/ I 

,, 

\ (,,, / 

. (
(

�',,• 

'"/.'(if' [{,\'
TO BE V.-UD MUST SE IMPRIN'l[l) l'IITH EJ.13OSSED SEAL -'ND SICNA1\JRE 

SHEET 

1 S3 LAND INVESTMENTS, LLC 

C/o BRAD FULLER 
BOUNDARY SURVEY 

OF 2 

Allara Gutcher
Rectangle

Allara Gutcher
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 1 - Certified Boundary Survey



--
Ol 

' 
I LU' 

-I
=> 
C 
LU 

::c 
(.) 
en 

,i I 

H.1.1::tON 11.J....I----+-+- r ;· ::::-:::1 1 

w 
.J 

Cl 
Cl co 

< g 
0 .... 
Cl) 

0 g- "' :I: 
a. 
< 0a: 
(!J 

g..a.J.... 

..:--
... g 
w st" 
w I&. I 
z.c 
-o

-.!:
-

--- - --

� 
E"' 0� 
o"
z"'
c"'
--'� z l-o r z� F z wo < w �► r � w zw 

r � Ou � �r w �>�z o z2 o �u � w�� w � Zw r rz < >�wD � z� w �w u o O�z
z�r � 0� � ��w� o� 0�� <2< � wo J �<�o <� w���j �o� � mu r woowur 0 r o< 0rw5m 
��� � ���z�Oo����r �� z��-o zI,oro�ooww��w�oo0ozr <�r�w Otnw,_w o,_,_oc��oc�w,-rrzOrco <��woo F�O w�OC v��wzr �zoc�r �z u�zI��0�Zzz��wz��rw<�oo�u�ow wo<2rWJ0000JwUwOOOZrOIIW�Z�V 

z1
"'1-irirv,o�a.o..u:zca::::Jun_a.z:::Jv>uuuoc::,n_:::J 

g I 1 I I I I I 1 I I I I I I I I I I I l I I I I I I I I 
C 
5 O w . . . . . . � 
m u ,: -ci .ddzz::,� d�� c� "' Q'.. 1- IDUU .:,; , "'t, c:, 
mw ,,_ ,__,. oo__,wu, . . .  1- .m tnVJm < �roc�ooo���u�<OCJ���z oouuu�J��J 

c:iw
Q_ 0 V, C z V, 

Q_ u ;!cw VJ w 
C V) --' -VJ w zu :,; ;:,., --' 

'.,; ::, . QO'. z --' "' ::, "'0 co ow I ::, -
:I:"' °'F I ;;! ., >-
':: ID 

zO w 
0"' >- > :I:--' ,: --' ',.' Q'. w 

I- g; VJ ::, z 
�u >- . w Q'. V, :::J 

>-� wU . --' ::, >� Nz V) "' "' w "' >::, z w 
><n ::, . " ,: 
Q'. Q'. VJ lQ z' z C< 0 
::, 0 "0 C< ::, Q_ VJ>- z>- Ou, ::, 0 

w _w FO 0 0 0 
CO> ir> c- C 
z Q'. ::, Q'. I-"' 0 z w 
-::, 0::, VJ ID z ::, :c g; V) 

--' e V) "'0 ::, "' 
Oz I- 0 w Wz Ul W � z > 
I-"' 

VJ < Q'. n_ 0 w::, ' :,; bj;! :,; w 0 
V) "' za: C ;': Q_ c:i :,; ci I "' ow a:� -� I-
c,z :,; z I!,"' ,., oz z zO UQ I-
Q'. C ·C "'a. oz 5Z w z
z ID �"' o< Q'.;w --' < u u.., 0 Q'. Oo Oo --' U1 VJ 0.. 0 

; 
"'w Uw OU "'30 "' 3c >-
-a_ Q_ °' F 6"' �"' "' :c . ::,; , ::,; I-"' t-w ... .., � �� .,. C z < V) J: �� 

w ?<1- o__, x1- 0 "' "'VJ .,. "' oa. wo wo a. a:
0 J;] <il • ■ ):( +

-- ---. 

1 

I 

11 

-11

I 
ii 
i 

� 
� . 
z 
j! 

� � 
oz 
-o 

Ii 

w• 

!." 
a, 
P:H 
�CX!

ILi ,�• ao -H O· . ""' 
!." ::!j c-.i
�

-H &� • (") P) 

ILi• 

a, . IJ) 
IPSl 
� .... 
IJ) 

�.:ff ... 
:.i-iq �-H""' a, ..... :.i ao . a, 
GO N ..-1 !5i--...J z �ii,

i= 
:H ::..... 
c-.i ; 

:!i� 

ILi• 
+tO> 

,tl""JSf:J 

• ·-r
�8 9.10 AC.±
(l)o 

.-113 (in'\z 3.9s,£s.lON "tiJ 
'F,0'£16 :--==c-:=-- -

'F,L'806 
3.0 l,9Z. ION 

""' -H 
U) 
IJ) '°' 

s::-<l ('I. • U)
�a, I 
0 _CJ) :,-
:ZN 

�rl '- a G 

ILi IJ)

u.1-
0 --' 
,::w1-
o��ocVJa.

I 
I 
I 
I • 

O-t1 u,. . 0a, .
i:><D 
l8� 
IJ) 

.ili " I? 

!I.I��fe Qc'ii: 
(J k'� 

�&t
!--.- kl � 
e�&

; �� 0 

�/8 
c,_ § .::� 

-H 
u...:
t{) 
0::, 

I 
I 
I:£ 

ILi 
• 0>-H
P)• 

��fiosr.... 
z 

f! � � r--

r� a,v
1o 

w / V
q, N+1 

� ..... 

,Y.. 
. ""' 

v-o 

-"'
N 
ui 
� "' -.,,

' "' "' . 
J: 0 
0 "'"' "' "' 
0 

ri 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

t
z a, ILi C') 

�!z 
a: i 
ic, 

ro
0f::to(/J '"1-

r<"ln�L&J!"')Z N 
Vl�ll).--Ol{)Q ll) 
....1 ww ►wt; w 
<(WC,(.;) .... (!)- (.!J 
et:(!)<(<( ...J-<( ll::'. < 
��a..a._�a...t;; a.. - - -0 _w -
::er-,:��a::a,o::: g □ r")o00<0w 0>
zlO.-<OzVU') V
<::ic:::.::'.::x::<C�::i�'.x:'.'. (/)OOO_;Owwo 
<000cc0U�O
Cl a:i CD Ill °' m � � m
_i-Q::cii:i�Q::0:::0::(i
Oddd::iOUi�o 

w 
'"' 

z�,....._ 
1 � ::Jl-� 
I __ ,..., .. 

w8:.,
I Pi "'a. 
\It). r5 8 
1i:too LL. O ID 
- ''a (0 

080::: 
'_· _ _ f•,!'" 

...J3::� I, o--

i M•.f!:!'!'�s . -. 

21.09 AC.± 

�ilLZ 

�·....
0 

� 
ILi 

�
a: 
S£ 
�I 
g 

,8£'££9Z:
:,,. 

"<I" 
-......_ 

LJ
z

; 
/ 

'�-' 
,J· 
,�_;-
�ii' 
:1, 
-.k:-•�'Yl 
i1l: s,;:::..,
if
t••i
J';JJ'j ·� 
�:··-c: !•,,., 
,::.,, '1 ' 
t-' 
•!}-/ 

" :/.'":;:· 
:v,, 

I '1'. ·1,,,
i.'i/ 

'•'!'1 /:,. ·� ;'J r

�, :,,,. 
r r. 

'i r 
:::J 
l5 i 
�, t::' �, 
\ 

0 

� ;§ < "' 
�� _J X-<( 0 U1 Q'. 
"'I- I
Q. V) n_ C � <wo 

-H 
<S<
I') 
0 r..: 
I') 
,,., 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

J 

I! 
I 
I 
\ 
I 
I 
I ,� 
N 

I� 
I 
I 

..I

I 
I 

,.__ 

...IN 
�N 
oz 
i3Q 
ii 

(9L'0Us) "SHO 98'6L 1S3.lON 01� sn 
,9L'0LZs M.Ol,9Z.l0S 

,9J"9JOC: M.OJ,9C:..JOS 

;,. 
X . ..,. z o

c,:,;z 
z w 
t;;U6_Z Q'. xO a, wu-

' 
I

I 
z 

·' ,· '

,8£'s£9Z 

,q
---.... � 
w 
(/) 

� �� � -s.,' 1 �-
& 

ciw"' . 
� 

-- -- -- - - -- -- ----- - i! 
z 
0 

fd 
IJ) 

--- ---

;...q 
..t..t 

��
z 

-- -- --

ILi • ..... 
u,:H • a, 

�� 
ILi • ..... '"'"'
f!.lig 
�P) 
� 

w 

"' .. 0 U1 • .., .. 
b� 
z "' 
0 U1 
cl 

• +tN_ 
r-ic-i 
�� 
�..tz 

;H
"'!

ILi• 
� 

:f 
i 

I 
I 
I 

;... 
ui"' "' 
N 

,1'!,"9s9Z 3,.00,0 l lON 

�«, <;_,c,,
'!, -"" ,{)" 

I. �<it'd< 
' _('\ ... {' _.�o-: s 

G"' ·' "."
�<f' �_i& 

�«,� ,c�. 
,� 

C5 1,
'> 

-"'</? iv�
-<..

- I 
,s:,,�~- c,<.-v '

,. 
,. 

'<- <;_,'1-
r} 

�,:, �

<,"--

·' .,�';_ .--··__·.-
,q---.... � 

� 
z 

' '-•�f:· 

:t 
J 

i· '.} 

-JI,' 

t 
'1
' 

:l 
;i Ji, 
)ic :'.•' �-, •l::1 ,�,,, J. 

------..r ,zcar1 3.oo,ol10N 

�I 
ii z 

I 
I 
I 
I' 
I 
1�"',� 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

C, Zn_ ::>o o,
ir-

; z 
"'0 
c,:,;,,. z 
FO� 
(/)ZO xoo:::wow

N 

� 

� 
IJ) 

"<I"N ....__
'--- u.. � 
-o 

z � 

,sCLL9Z ,L9'8£0 

. 
m
q 
Q. 

� 
0 

�-, 
Zw 

3: ��• .::so
w--' 
Q'. 0 

in _.) 

\ 

I 

Ii 
re� 

i ''
; l 

,, 

i\'
·:� 

I 't 
(. . 

L 

'I 'I 
.u 
·\
l
;'j ,,.: 

ii 
\I 
'I 
'0
1 

u�,,� a rS u"' 
0' . "' �1 t en

'1' ';,- is{ C) .... ' z..,_,..,;.'; �z-o1:i -" 

• CJ) �-
!!!Ii I 

I � 

; � 
0 .. 0\ -� u, ru - "° If) 
11 ..0 .. l()("JU, c: ruM�lli .. 
:, 00 ru8r---� 
0 � ..,.. ;::::;=: ,:,,, 

II 11 II II II 

iO::l�<J....1w� 

I •1 

I� 
I J; 
I� "'

'°' I �:14-
a: 

�i� 1�1,,1 

�"'-"';
. 

,., i)l �"" :i:, ,.,..,... . 
z 'a. .4. 7-. 

���o I ,>)_�o. :If,�} 

l�� 
o.s>-

·4�

� 't, I...: 0 , Ill 

_
.; 

Ia, :,, tv . "' C .. c ? "iP� CO�U')l()CD= "° ru co ru
ci (") -.6 ci O � :, �M..o..or--.. 0 �rur--.r---C/J 
II II II ·11 II 

a::1 a:: <I _J w E 
._oi:·oLc;i- 3.oo.oi:. i:oN 

I 

\\I

�\ 
,zcar l 3.00,d l ION

N 

u. 0 
v,W 
,_o 
zZ 
<W 
z"
:,; 0
CJ --' iro 

� ,-: 
� ;i (/) 
C') 0 O 
z:,; w 
- n_ ••�o��
(/J z ••((., X01-wWUC/lO:::: 

'---'"- � 
�o 

(/) � 

z 
·ceceo �

11.fmg��I.(") O.,..::::iiEG:: •(/Jr<') 

a: .-i C: q � 5 � fW ('f 113 a:: o -a:::-Z 
z U:::i w 

.a: Z �c.,3or5 
�8g3i'z� "' �� 
C!:i:@�=>,,:,��n_
O.cb0ci:::8(j;:t;� 

'i,,,.__
:;:"' 
N 

• "' 
0 
0,.."'"'
z 

8"' "'
��• Iii 
13 
d"',,
In 
�o'Z' 
qj 
51 

�
I

I 
,,, '. I

1lj
1

.,� 
)� 
\'. 
;,1 t:j 

'.1 ,, 
{1 

"'I

!�] 
:1! ii 
i� 

\ '"

11il,
fJ. 
fl ':I, 

I®,:I
..___ ,c;9·9i:ov.13.si:.9soOON - - -l fO\ Po""•-·• ,Os'sS£S 3,.81,SS.OON 

,B8"B££1 --- )], i' 

JOB NUMBER I M17-o65729

DRAWN BY I A. MATHIS
COUNTY /STATE I ESCAMBIA/FLORIDA

SCALE I 1"=400·

REVISIONS 

JI 
"i 

t (.08"66ZS) 'SHO rn·oe 'S3.lON Ol!l snr;r 
I'"' :'<,· 

i�(t: 

"� 
It I.·\,
,,�_: ;,,.,

"OLDEST SURVEYING FIRfvl IN JACKSON COUNTY_ FLC,°'J'.);1" 

� O c, 
(f) w � 
,..aizz °' w < "'� 
z a, ::.ow
w __J Q; oco,: 

BANNERMAN SURVEYORS, 
4997 'liGIIWAY 90 - MARIANNA. F'..(QJR'.0,',1-32448 

INC. 
DA TE 111-01 -11 PHO,\JE (850) 5Z6 · 4460 · FAX (85 J) 'i?6 · L14E2 · E-mail bs,952:12'0 yalloo.co1n - v,w,·J bi11111c1111iJ11s,11 vcyo, sine.com

;;; -c•c -._ ·- c:c;::'fi:1,;-..,� '- ,,,J+·�:.,,:; .. _ - :·li+'"'
"".� "'"';'"'""� :, :,.S:'.·C� ''-'!.'t��,;t.;;·;�'.-:,-

':;:,--, ��;:, .. :7�,��: -::AuJ���$i;,:,:.' ';;'.;��-�,��;�,_:;:;;.� -���··· ��.,.tit: � -.·-;

L1c1nc,cd 11,: 

FLORIDA 
�·rn 

COLORADO 

PROJECT 
:t . ,  

;w 
.:1 
I 

)t ,' 

NOTE CORRESPONDING TO SCHEDULE B SECTION II 

7. Oil, gas and mineral rights conveyed to Humble Oil & Refining Company by Special
Warranty Deed from Florida Oil and Gas Company, a Florida corporation, dated April 1,
1971, recorded April 1, 1971, in Official Records Book 537, Page 483, as affected by
Notice of Claim issued by Exxon Corporation, to St. Regis Paper Company, dated
October 13, 1976, recorded October 13, 1976 in Official Records Book 1043, Page 538,
and by Notice Of Claim issued by Exxon Mobil Corporation, dated October 4, 2006,
recorded October 17, 2006, in Official Records Book 6013, Page 1560, all of the Public
Records of Escambia County, Florida. See Section 22 containing 21.09 AC.±

8. Easement and Agreement for Light Guide Fiber Optic Cable granted by Champion
International Corporation, a New York corporation, to American Telephone and
Telegraph Company Co., a New York corporation, dated August 6, 1987, recorded
September 21, 1987, in Official Records Book 2456, Page 727, of the Public Records of
Escambia County, Florida. Does not encumber.

9. Rood Easement granted by Champion ·International Corporation, a New York
corporation, to Allen Jones and Angela Jones, husband and wife, dated July 13, 1994,
recorded August 1, 1994, in Official Records Book 3621, Page 584, of the Public
Records of Escambia County, Florida. Does not encumber.

10. Mineral and Royalty Deed effective as of October 1, 2000 mode by International
Paper Company, a New York corporation, Champion .Realty Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, et al, ("Grantors"), to Pure Resources L.P., a Texas limited partnership, as
("Grantee"), and SP Forests, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company, ("Additional
Surface Owner") dated January 30, 2001, recorded March 29, 2001, in Official Records
Book 4681, Page 530, of the Public Records of Escambia County, Florida. See Section
22 co�toining 21.09 AC.±

11. Surface Use Restrictions Agreement effective as of October 1, 2000, made by
International Paper Company, a New York corporation, Champion Realty Corporation, a
Delaware corporation, et al, ("Surface Owners"), to Pure Resources LP., a Texas limited
partnership, as ("Mineral Owner"), doted January 30, 2001, recorded August 23, 2002, in
Official Records Book 4960, Page 524, of the Public Records of Escambia County,
Florida. See Section 22 containing 21.09 AC.±

12. Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions contained in Special Warranty Deed by
International Paper Company, a _New York "corporation,' to RMS Timberlands LLC, o
Oeraware limited liability company, dated November 3, 2006, 1 recorded December 22,
2006, in Official Records Book 6055, Page 752, of the Public Records of Escambia
County, Florida. All 4 Sections containing 639.07 AC.±

13. Oil, gos and Mineral Interests/rights as reserved in Special Warranty Deed by
International Poper Company, a New York corporation, to RMS Timberlands LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, doted November 3, 2006, recorded December 22,
2006, in Official Records Book 6055, Page 752, and in Quit Claim Deed by International
Paper Company, a New York corporation, to RMS Timberlands LLC, a Delaware limited
liobility company, doted November 3, 2006, recorded December 22, 2006, in Official
Records Book 6055, Page 785, both of the Public Records of Escambia County, Florida.
All 4 Sections containing 639.07 AC.±

14. Surface Use Agreement among RMS Timberlands LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, and International Paper Company, a New York corporOtion, dated November 
3, 2006, recorded December 22, 2006, in Official Records Book 6055, Page 815, of the 
Public Records of Escambia County, Florido. All 4 Sections containing 639.07 AC.± 

15. Memorandum of Pulpwood Agreement by. and between International Paper Company,
a New York corporation, Red Mountain Timberlands LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company, and RMS Timberlands LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, doted 
October 31, 2006, recorded December 22, 2006, in Official Records Book 6055, Poge 
855, of the Public Records of Escambia County, Florida. All 4 Sections containing 
639.07 AC.± 

16. Memorandum of Log Agreement by and between International Paper Company, a
New York corporation, Red Mountain Timberlands LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, and RMS Timberlands LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, dated
October 31, 2006, recorded December 22, 2006, in Official Records Book 6055, Page
888, of the Public Records of Escambia County, Florida. All 4 Sections containing
639.07 AC.±

17. Recognition Agreement by and among Red Mountain Timberlands LLC, o Delaware
limited liability company, RMS Timberlands LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
and Red Mountain Timber Co IV LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, et al, dated
November 3, 2006, recorded December 22, 2006, in Official Records Book 6055, Page
943, of the Public Records of Escambia County, Florida. All 4 Sections containing
639.07 AC.±

19. Terms and Conditions of that certain Renewable Energy Option and Lease dated
May 15, 2017, by and between RMS Timberlands LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
and S3 Land Investments, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as evidenced by
Memorandum of Renewable Energy Option and Lease dated May 15, 2017, recorded
June 5, 2017, in Official Records Book 7722, Page 1776, of the Public Records of
Escambia County, Florida. All 4 Sections containing 639.07 AC.±

CLIENT SHEET TITLE SHEET 

S3 LAND INVESTMENTS, LLC 

C/o BRAD FULLER

-�= ··-:-,..,,.

BOUNDARY SURVEY 
2 

OF 2

,'\; 
r-,· F .. ,-. 
/.; .._ 
f: 
i 

r\:i 
¥ 
j 
p 
� 
if 
f ,.,; 'l '
\ 

I? 
!'1 
k 

.r '.,t 
;t; 
i1 

,
,\t 

! 

: ·,; 1:} 

J ' 
-� 
u 
� 
i 

;� 

' ' ' 
� 
:� 

-� 
1, 

I' 
! 
! 



X

XXXX

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X X

X

X
X

X X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X X
X

X

X X X X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X X

X

X

X

X X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X

XX

X
X

XX

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

XXX

X
X

X

X

X X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X X

X

X

X

X X

X

X

X

X X X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Date

Certificate of Authorization No. 1670

Florida P.E. Licence No. 72381

Blake T. Holcomb, P.E.

0
1
 
i
n

19-115704

Control No.

19115704-A002c

SHEET

2

 

2019-01-24

BCL

HH/BTH

.

.

GULF POWER COTTON CREEK SOLAR ENERGY CENTER

398 W BOGIA RD., McDAVID, FLORIDA 32568

 

GULF POWER COMPANY

 

 

SITE PLAN

 

TITLE

PROJECT NO. REV.

PROJECTCLIENT

CONSULTANT

PREPARED

DESIGNED

REVIEWED

APPROVED

YYYY-MM-DD

I
F

 
T

H
I
S

 
M

E
A

S
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

 
D

O
E

S
 
N

O
T

 
M

A
T

C
H

 
W

H
A

T
 
I
S

 
S

H
O

W
N

,
 
T

H
E

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
S

I
Z

E
 
H

A
S

 
B

E
E

N
 
M

O
D

I
F

I
E

D
 
F

R
O

M
:
 
A

N
S

I
 
B

F
i
l
e
 
N

a
m

e
:
 
1
9
1
1
5
7
0
4
-
A

0
0
2
c
.
d
w

g

PROPERTY BOUNDARY

 

PERMIT DRAWINGS

SCALE

0 400 800

FEET

LEGEND

FENCE LINE

X X

INVERTER SKID

PV MODULE

TURN-AROUND

SERVICE PATHS

40-FT FRONT AND REAR

AND 15-FT SIDES PROPERTY SETBACK

GULF POWER COTTON CREEK SOLAR ENERGY CENTER

398 W BOGIA RD., McDAVID, FLORIDA 32568

OWNER

GULF POWER COMPANY

PROJECT

GULF POWER COTTON CREEK SOLAR ENERGY CENTER

LOCATION: 398 W BOGIA RD., McDAVID, FLORIDA 32568

SITE COVERAGE

SITE COVERAGE TABLE

DESCRIPTION SQ. FT. ACREAGE % OF SITE

PROPOSED ACCESS PATHS

486,117

11.16 1.75

COLLECTOR YARD

83,499

1.92 0.30

INVERTER PADS

6,317

0.15 0.02

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS
575,933

13.22 2.07

TOTAL PERVIOUS
27,262,054

625.85 97.93

PROJECT AREA (FENCED) 15,384,537

353.18 55.26

TOTAL AREA

27,837,987

639.07 100

SURFACING

ACCESS PATHS: BASE MATERIAL

INVERTER PADS: STABILIZED AGGREGATE BASE

COLLECTOR YARD: AGGREGATE SURFACE

OPEN SPACE: GRASSED AREA

NOTE: ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE.

ZONING

SITE ZONING SETBACKS

FRONT 40'

SIDE 15'

REAR 40'

STRUCTURE DISTANCE TO PROPERTY BOUNDARY

SOLAR PANELS ARE MINIMUM 40' FRONT AND REAR

AND 15' SIDES FROM PROPERTY BOUNDARY

100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN

THE FACILITY LIES WITHIN FLOOD ZONE X AND FLOOD ZONE A (AREA OF MINIMAL

FLOOD HAZARD) AS IDENTIFIED ON FEMA PANEL No.12033C0155G, EFFECTIVE DATE:

09/28/2006.

SECURITY FENCING

PROPERTY

BOUNDARY (TYP.)

WETLAND BOUNDARY

INVERTER

SKID/PAD (TYP.)

SECURITY GATES

SECURITY

FENCE (TYP.)

SITE ENTRANCE AND

GATE

W
 BO

G
IA RO

AD

12' WIDE SERVICE PATHS (TYP.)

EXISTING OVER

HEAD POWER LINE

20' WIDE ACCESS PATH

TO COLLECTOR YARD

COLLECTOR YARDS

229'x236.5' & 163'x180'

COLLECTOR YARD FENCE SHALL BE 7'-0" CHAINLINK WITH 6 STRANDS OF BARBED

WIRE ON "V" EXTENSION ARMS TO MAKE AN OVERALL HEIGHT OF 8'-0".

PERIMETER FENCE SHALL BE 6'-0" CHAINLINK WITH 3 STRANDS OF BARBED WIRE TO

MAKE AM OVERALL HEIGHT OF 7'-0"

SECURITY

FENCE (TYP.)

COLLECTOR YARD

ENTRANCE GATES

FEMA FLOOD ZONE X AND FLOOD ZONE A (PANEL

No.12033C0155G, EFFECTIVE DATE: 09/28/2006).

20' WIDE ACCESS PATH

TO COLLECTOR YARD

30-FT WETLAND SETBACK

Allara Gutcher
Rectangle

Allara Gutcher
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 2 - Site Plan



Land Use Compatibility Analysis 

EXHIBIT 3 – Future Land Use Map 

Agriculture

Agriculture

Rural Community

Project Boundary

W. Bogia Road

S. Pine Barren Rd.

S.
 C

en
tu

ry
 B

lvd
.

Allara Gutcher
Polygon

Allara Gutcher
Rectangle



 Land Use Compatibility Analysis

 EXHIBIT 4 – Zoning Map 

Agriculture

Con

Rural Residential

Rural
Residential

Project Boundary

Agriculture

S. Pine Barren R
d.

W. Bogia Rd.

S.
 C

en
tu

ry
 B

lvd
.

Allara Gutcher
Line

Allara Gutcher
Polygon

Allara Gutcher
Rectangle



   
Board of Adjustment   6. E.           
Meeting Date: 05/15/2019  
CASE: CU-2019-09
APPLICANT: Staci Matz, Agent for Eli & Sarah Miller c/o New

Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 

ADDRESS: 3980 Hwy 97 

PROPERTY REFERENCE NO.: 34-4N-32-1000-000-010  
ZONING DISTRICT: AGR, Agricultural  
FUTURE LAND USE: AG  
OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED CONDITIONAL USE:
Conditional Use request to install a new telecommunication tower at the proposed height
of 315' and associated ground equipment in the Agricultural (AGR) zoning district.
 
RELEVANT AUTHORITY:
Land Development Code of Escambia County, Florida (Ordinance 96-3 as amended),

Section:3-2.2
(c)  Conditional Use
  e.  Public utility structures greater than 150 feet in height, including telecommunications
towers, but excluding any industrial uses. 

CRITERIA:
Land Development Code of Escambia County, Florida (Ordinance 96-3 as amended),
Section 2-6.4
Sale of Alcohol, Section 4-7.5(e)

CRITERION (a)
General compatibility.  The proposed use can be conducted and operated in a manner
that is compatible with adjacent properties and other properties in the immediate area.

If this is for the sale of alcohol within a 1000 ft of a place of worship or child care facility;
please explain 1- 5 below:
1.The existing times of use of the places of worship or child care facilities coincide with
the hours of operation of the subject business.
2.The 1000-foot minimum distance is not achieved.
3.The conflicting uses are visible to each other.
4. Any on-premises consumption is outdoors.
5. Any conditions or circumstances mitigate any incompatibility.



FINDINGS-OF-FACT The proposed tower, as described in the application documents, will
be 315' in height. The structure will be located in a 0.30 (+/-) acres section of a 20.00
(+/-) acre parent parcel and will be accessed via Highway 97. There are residential
structures located within the 500' distance of the proposed structure. Most properties
within the 500' buffer of the property are used as single-family residences or agricultural
land.  The proposed structure could be compatible with adjacent uses and operate in a
manner that would not impact properties in the immediate area. 

CRITERION (b)
Facilities and services.  Public facilities and services, especially those with adopted
levels of service, will be available, will provide adequate capacity to serve the proposed
use consistent with capacity requirements.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT

Public facilities and services were not addressed by the applicant. The availability of
facilities and services will be evaluated during the Site Plan Review process.

CRITERION (c)
On-site circulation.  Ingress to and egress from the site and its structures will be
sufficient, particularly regarding vehicle and pedestrian safety and convenience, efficient
traffic flow and control, on-site parking and loading, and emergency vehicle access.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT
According to the application, ingress to and egress from the site is proposed via
connection to Highway 97. Further compliance with on-site circulation and emergency
vehicle access will be evaluated during the Site Plan Review process.

CRITERION (d)
Nuisances and hazards. The scale, intensity, and operation of the use will not generate
unreasonable noise, glare, dust, smoke, odor, vibration, electrical interference, or other
nuisances or hazards for adjoining properties and other properties in the immediate area.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT The applicant has provided documentation for the FCC application,
coverage maps for the tower, and collocation information. Also, letters stating no
objection to the tower from the Federal Communications Commission, Federal Aviation
Administration, Florida Department of Transportation and Escambia County Emergency
Management have been submitted with the application.  

CRITERION (e)
Solid waste.  All on site solid waste containers will be appropriately located for functional
access, limited off-site visibility and minimal odor and other nuisance impacts.

FINDINGS-OF-FACT

The applicant states that no solid waste will be associated with this site.  Solid waste



The applicant states that no solid waste will be associated with this site.  Solid waste
requirements will be evaluated during the Site Plan Review process.

CRITERION (f)
Screening and buffering.  Where not otherwise required by the LDC, screening and
buffering will be provided if appropriate to the proposed use and site.

FINDINGS OF FACT: The applicant states that screening and buffering will be provided
as needed. Compliance with the LDC screening and buffering requirements will be
evaluated during the Site Plan Review process. 

CRITERION (g)
Signs and lighting.  All exterior signs and lights, whether attached or freestanding, will be
compatible with adjoining properties and other properties in the immediate area,
especially regarding glare and traffic safety.

FINDINGS OF FACT: The applicant states that all signs and lighting will be compatible
with Federal Aviation Administration requirements and adjoining properties in the
immediate area. Signs and lighting compatibility will be evaluated further during the Site
Plan Review process. 

CRITERION (h)
Site characteristics. The size, shape, location and topography of the site appear
adequate to accommodate the proposed use, including setbacks, intensity, bulk, height,
open space and aesthetic considerations.

FINDINGS OF FACT: Based on the submitted survey showing the proposed location, the
structure, size, shape, location and topography site could accomodate the proposed
use.  This parcel can be verified as the first split of lot of record and, it also meets the
minimum lot width requirement (100 feet) of the AGR zoning district.  If the Conditional
Use is approved, a formal project submittal thru the Site Plan Review process must be
made.  All of the LDC standards and requirements will apply.

Sec. 3-2.2 Agricultural district (Agr). 
(d) Site and building requirements. The following site and building requirements apply to
uses within the Agricultural district:
(5) Lot width. A minimum lot width of 100 feet at the street right-of-way for all lots. 

CRITERION (i)
Use requirements. The proposed use complies with any additional conditional use
requirements of the applicable zoning district, use, or other provisions of the LDC.

FINDINGS OF FACT: Application requirements.  Application for LDC compliance review
of proposed telecommunication towers shall include the following completed documents
for use in evaluating compliance, but applications for conditional use approval need not
include the geotechnical report or environmental compliance checklist.
a. A geotechnical exploration report. 



b. An FCC/NEPA environmental compliance checklist. 
c. Letters indicating no objection to the tower from the Federal Communications
Commission, Federal Aviation Administration, Florida Department of Transportation, and
Escambia County Emergency Management.  Federal Communications
Commission-Received and provided as part of the application.
Federal Aviation Administration- Received and provided as part of the application. 
Florida Department of Transportation-Received provided as part of the application. 
Escambia County Emergency Management-Received and provided as part of the
application.
d. Coverage maps for this tower-Received and provided as part of the application
e. Collocation information-Received and part of the application. 

STAFF FINDINGS
Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use as the applicant has addressed
all Conditional Use criteria for a telecommunications tower, as described in the LDC. The
applicant must submit a formal application for the project to the Development Review
Committee and receive a Development Order prior to any site disturbance. 

BOA DECISION
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FINDINGS

Attachments
Working Case File



CU-2019-09 



HIGHWAY 97

HENDRICKSLN

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000
Ft

CU-2019-09
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Caleb MacCartee

Legend
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD



HIGHWAY 97

Agr

Agr

Agr

Agr

Agr

Agr

Agr

0 400 800 1,200 1,600
Ft

CU-2019-09
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Caleb MacCartee

Legend
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD



HIGHWAY 97

AG

AG

AG

AG

AG

AG

AG

0 400 800 1,200 1,600
Ft

CU-2019-09
FUTURE LAND USE MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Caleb MacCartee

Legend
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD



HIGHWAY 97
0 300 600 900 1,200

Ft

CU-2019-09
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Caleb MacCartee

Legend
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD



Public Hearing Sign



Looking East



Looking West



Looking North



Looking South






















































	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_Draft April 17, 2019 Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes
	V-2019-03
	Att1_Working Case File
	V-2019-03
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Site Plan
	Proof of Ownership
	Boundary Survey
	Receipt

	CU-2019-04
	Att1_Working Case File
	CU-2019-04
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	Aerial Map
	Lot of Record Map
	Surrounding Property Owners
	Photos
	Application
	Letter of Request
	FCC Information
	FAA Information
	FDOT Information
	Warranty Deed
	Certificate of Liability Insurance
	Boundary Survey

	CU-2019-07
	Att1_Working Case File
	CU-2019-07
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	Aerial Map
	AIPD 1 Map
	APZ 2 Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Proof of Ownership
	Map Submitted by Applicant
	License Certificate
	FDOT Letter
	Boundary Survey
	Receipt

	CU-2019-08
	Att1_Working Case File
	CU-2019-08
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Letter of Transmittal
	Application
	Proof of Ownership
	Boundary Survey
	Site Plan
	Maps Submitted by Applicant
	Memorandum of Renewable Energy Option and Lease
	Land Use Compatibility Analysis

	CU-2019-09
	Att1_Working Case File
	CU-2019-09
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	FLU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Application
	FCC Registration
	FDOT Letter
	Public Safety Letter
	Letter from AT&T
	Proof of Ownership
	SMW Info
	Boundary Survey


